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Notice of the " A0 - B - BSRMVision

Annual General Meeting

Notica s herebry given that the Bth Annual General Meseting of BSAM Steels Limted will be
hald on Tueaday, the 31* May 2011 at 11:00 AM at The Institution of Engineers, Bengladash,
55 Khaled Road, Chittegong to transact the following business:

l.  Agenda-01: To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company and also Consofidated Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2010 along with Report of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

IL  Agenda-02: Ta consider and daclare dividend on the basis of recommendation of the
Board of Directors.

Il. Agenda-03: To elect directors In ferms of the relevant provision of the Articles of
Agsoclation of the Gompany.

V. Agenda-04.To appoint Auditors to hald the office until the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company and to fix up their remuneération.

By the Order of he Board
e
Ahidlsy”
{Shekhar Ranjan Kar FGA)
Head of Finance & Accounts
And

Company Secretary
Ghittagang.
31 March, 2011.
Notes

1} Tha Record Date ks 12" April, 2011.

2} The praxy form must be afftxed with requisite revenue stamp and be depoaltad at the
Heglstered Office of the Company not less than 72 hours before the ime fixed for the
megting.

3} Admitiance to the meeting venus wil be cn production of the attendance slip sent with
1he Annual Report.
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Malmtain our leadership position in the sieel industry by- producing the
best qually sieel products, coninpously enhancing customer
satisfaction and becoming a reliabla business pariner of our
customers and suppliers.

Be an employer of choice, with focus on nururing talent and
developing future leaders of the organization.

Protect the imterest of our shareholders through sustainable growth
and value craation.

Presarve the trust of all our stakeholders by adogting ethical business
practices.

Support the soclety thraugh Corporate Soclal Respans(biltty intfigtives.
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BSRM Values Al "~ BSRM Group

Over the Years

imahls " Consistent improvement in the quality of products and services, efficiency 1852 = The B3AM Saga bagan when the first kel re-rolling mills started to emerge in the
nf pmlm arlu pmmanilltr of business; continuously anticipating and responding to the then East Bangal.
changing busingss and emvironmental nesds using innovation; sharing knowladge and | .

; i 0 g anizaiion. 1884 . Intreduced high—strength cold twisted steel bars to the construction industry.

" " . : ] 1987  Introduced ASTM 615 Grade 60 reinforced gteel bars.
vl Creating products and services valued by our customers; constantly improving our :
processes through innavation and adopling best practices; raducing wastags; minimizing costs; 1886  Commissioned the argest biliet making plant in the courtry
investing in systems and technology and devedoping our people io build & highly capable 2008  Introduced micro reinforcement wires, balow 8mm for low cost rural consiruction,
WIRHfercs. 2008 | BSAM Steels Limited started producing Itemationally recognized Grade 500 steel
- Ba the proferred business parimer of our customers and suppliers by offering quality bars branded as "Xtreme 500W".

pruduclr prviding our best and fimely service before, during and after tha business
transactions and honouring all our commitments despite challenges.

‘el Preserve the falth and goadwill of all our stakeholders - customers, shareholders,
suppliers, employees, regulatory bodies and soclely by-adopting ethical and trangparent
business practicas, being fair and honest in all cur dealings and buikding robust govemance and
risk management processes.

- Be a mie model, setting benchmarks throupgh our prducts, processes and people:
mnstunmf moving =head of competifion by differentiating our products, innowating our
processes, increasing our market share and nuriuring talent o develop leadars within the
u’nariznﬁn'l.

2010  BSRM Iron & Sieel Go. Lid. started commerclal production on 1st June, 2010.
2010 * Production capaciy of BSRM Stesls LimRed has enhanced to 5,50,000 M. Ton.

.- Acknowiedge and fulfil our oblipations towards the soclety by
urmnaldng Inli-alim Inr the general upliftment of the society, building capability and making
facilities available to the undsrprivileged.

Eat . Delight our external and intermal customers at every stage of our
hu'mﬂnn mm mam hr truly understanding thelr needs, offaring them our best products and
services, reating them with respect and actively seeking and acting on their feedback
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Corporate and Registered Address

Dhaka Office

Factory Address

Other Dffices

Year of Incorporation
Date of Commercial Production

Authorized Capital
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital
Share Lisling Date
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Company, Profile

Ali Mansion, 1173/1207 Sadarghat Foad, Chittagong.
Tel: +88 031 2854901-10, 616402, 613759, 613282
Fax; +88 031 610101 ; E-mall; mail@bsrm.com

Mahbub Castle (2 & 4" Floor), 35/A Purana Paltan Line,
Inner Circular Road (VIP Road), Dhaka-1000.

Tel: +88 02 8311994, 8313135, 9358135

Fax: +88 02 8312005; E-mail: dhaka@bsrm.com

4 Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Sitakunda, Chittagong.
Tel: 88 031 2770192-3; Fax: +88 031 2770190

www, bsrm.com

Samad Mansion, Mendibag, Upashahar, Sylhet
Tel: 0821 721239, 01730 012520; Fax: 0821 2832751
E-mail: sylhet@bsrm.com

Tinmatha Rail Gate (Near to North Bengal Petrol Pump)

Puran Bogra, Bogra
Tel: 051 60792; Fax: 051 64169

E-mail: bogra@bsrm.com

Plot No. C-7, Road No.-4, Shiromoni VA, Khulna
Tel: 041 785303; E-mail; khulna@bsrm.com

Chandrima Supar Market, Airport Road (Near EPZ Main gate)
Comilla. Tel: 081 71988
Fax; 081 68450, E-mail: comilla@bsrm.com

Monowara Complex, 100 Shamsher Nagar, Moulvi Bazar
Tel: 0861 62986, 01730 078242
E-mail: moulvibazar@bsrm.com

2002

14 April, 2008

BD Tk, 500.00 Crore
BD Tk. 271.25 Crore
18" January, 2009

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman

Mr. Zohair Taherali
Director

Director

Mr. Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali
Director

Mr. Qazi Sarwar-E-Alam
Independent Director
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Name

Mr. Moize Hussain

Mr. Tapan Sengupta

Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed

Mr. M. Firoze

Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA

Mr. Sunil Kumar Das

Mr. Mohammed Reazul Kabir ACA
Mr. M. Harunur Rashid

Name

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA
Mr. Zohair Taherali

Mrs. Sabaen Aameir

Mr. Qazi Sarwar- E- Alam

Name

Mr. Tapan Sengupta

Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed

Mr. M. Firoze

Mr. Shobhon Mahbub Shahabuddin
Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA

Mr. Sunil Kumar Das

Mr. K. M. Sufian

Mr. A.FM. Mizanur Rahman

Mr. Md. Azizul Haque

Mr. Jasim Uddin Ahmed

Mr. Sankar Roy

Mr. Abdul Gaffar

Mr. Mohammed Reazul Kabir ACA
Mr. M. Harunur Rashid

Mr. Mohammad Emarot Hossain

Mr. Molze Hussain
Mr. Tapan K. Poddar FGA, FCMA

Rahman Rahman Hug
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Designation

Adviser

Executive Director

Head Dhaka Office

Head of Business and Product Development
Head of Accounts & Finance and Company Secretary
Head of Plant

Chief Financial Officer

Senior Manager- Commercial & Purchase

Designation
Chairman

Member

Member
Independent Director

Designation

Executive Director

Head Dhaka Office

Head of Business and Product Development

General Manager- Sales & Marketing

Head of Finance & Accounts and Company Secretary
Head of Plant

General Manager-Group Project Execution

General Manager —Operation and Administration
General Manager (BISCO)

General Manager- Group Projects

Assistant General Manager-Technical & Development
Assistant General Manager-HR and Admin

Chief Financial Officer

Senior Manager- Commercial & Purchase

Manager Audit

Adviser
Financial Consultant

102, Agrabad Commercial Area
Chittagong

Particulars

Revenue

Net Profit (BSRM Steets Limited only)

Net Profit (Consolidated)

Net Profit Ratio (BSAM Steels Limited only)
Eaming Per Share (BSRM Steels Limited only)
Eaming Per Share (Consolidated)

Dickdend Reommended:

Met Asset Value

Met Asset Value per Share

"' Financial

Highlights 2010

Tk. 22,007,682,247
Tk. 964,885,985
Tk, 1,068,228,190
4.38%

Tk 53.12

Tk 58.81

20% Stock Dividend
Tk. 2,134,875,596

Tk 78.71
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Tk. 15,843 536,337
Tk, 574,084,231
3.62%

Th. 34.43

15% Stock Dividend
Tk, 124,989,611

Tk 8.62




The year 2010 was unparalieled in BSRM's 58 year history with record sales of its
popular XtremeS00W brand reinforcing bar, XtremeS00W became the steel of choice
among the country's countless small home builders.

XtremeS00W was the steel of choice also for infrastructure projects and property devel-
opers. Dhaka's emerging skyline of tall buildings could confidently boast of “Xtreme
inside” emblem as the majority of commercial and residential property developers
preferred the new re-bar for its excellent safety feature of high ductility and higher yield
resistance.

The gleaming new cable stayed bridge over the river Karnafuli in Chittagong put its trust
in BSAM XtremeS00W. The bridge connects the port city with south Chiitagong including
Cox' Bazar. The pride of Dhaka, the 15 kilometer Gulistan-Jatrabari fly-over, also
preferred XiremeS00W. The 32mm and 25mm large diameter bars of 500 Mpa yield
strength, crucial in ensuring seismic resistance to bridge and flyover piers, is a BSRM
specialty as the bars must possess sufficient ductility as well.

BSRM Quality Assurance or Q.A. created another milestone by ensuring ‘Elongation at e .
maximum Force’ In its XtremeS00w bars. ‘'Elongation at maximum Force' is the ultimate e
measure of a ductile bar. This property permits engineers o design critical structures to
withstand the effects of cyclones and earthguakes.

Chairman’s

MESSAGE
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Assalamo-alaikum. It is my immensa pleasure o welcome you all to the 9th Annual
General Maeting. | would like to take this opportunity to share with you the results that
our company achieved in 2010 and our future plan to keep the company as the
unparalleled market leader.

The global economic downtum and prevailing socio-economic condition in the country,
forced the Company to bear huge losses in 2008. By the grace of Almighty Allah in 2009,
we could recover substantial losses and were able to maintain this trend in 2010 also.

You will be happy to know that we have achieved some impressive milestones in 2010.
In production and sales, we surpassed all previous records. Our production increased by
23% in terms of quantity and at the same time sales also went up by 24% compared to
2009

During the year 2010 we have made huge capital Investment for capacity expansion
and we have increased our production capacity to 550,000 M. Ton per annum. The
original capacity of this plant was 375,000 M. Tons. It will anable us to reduce per ton
production cost and hopefully in future we will be able to supply our products at a more
competitive price and also increase our profit margine.

In the steel sector, securing uninterrupted supply of raw materials (billets) is one
pre-requisite for sustainable growth. To ensure secured source of billets, we have
already acquired 95% shares of BSAM Iron & Steel Co Lid, a billet making plant with
capacity of 150,000 M. Ton per annum. You will be happy knowing that, this melting
shop went into production on 1stJune 2010 and eamed a Net Profit of Tk. 109,928,802,
In 2011, the financial condition of this company will definitely improve with full year's
production and sale considered.

Good Corporate governance is vital for effective and efficient business operation, long
term stability and sustainable growih. We have taken a number of measures fo ensure
good corporate governance keeping in mind the vision and values of our company. At
last | would like to express my deep appreciation for continued support and
co-operation extended to us by our work force, senior management staff, customers,
bankers, different regulatory bodies like Securities and Exchange Commission, National
Board of Revenue, Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms and Dhaka and
Chittagong Stock Exchanges. | must express my sincere gratitude to our valued
sharehoiders for their faith and confidence they have reposed in us. | strongly believe
that, with your support Inshaallah we will make our future brighter than ever before.
May Allah bless all of us.

Aliah Hafiz

M

Alihussain Akberali, FCA
Chairman
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Since 1952, the BSRM Group of Companies has always attempted to be the best quality
steel producer as a dependable business pariner of its customers. BSRM has been keen
to provide its valued customers quality product at a competitive price. With this view in
mind BSAM Steels Limited set up —a state of art rolling mill for producing high quality
steel products as per latest intermational standards. The mill was originally planned for
375,000 M. Ton per annum, after some modernization in 2010, now this mill is able fo
produce 550,000 M. Ton per annum which will enable us to increase our market share
and be more competitive.

Most regions of our country Is vulnerable to earthquake and cyclones. Quality
constriction materials should be used in civil construction to mitigate the risk of
disaster. The product of BSAM Steels Limited— "XtremeS00W™ is an engineered
reinforcing bar that can ensure safe construction.

The year 2010 was very challenging for the company. After the 2008 and 2009
worldwide recession, it was important to rise to the limited opportunities available in
2010. We were committed to utilize the opportunity. Both in sales and production we
were able to make important strides as we put a lot of effort behind both the activities.
In 2010, overall demand for steel in the country also improved.

A number of initiatives have been taken fo promote corporate social activities in this
year. Though profit is the prime objective of a business, social responsibility is a
requirement for long term sustainability.

Our focus on a cleaner work environment remains strong and we take utmost care in
ensuring that we install greener technologies not only to control poliution, but also to
reduce energy consumption. We have installed fume and dust extraction system that
ensures clean air in steel making plant. Per unit consumption of electricity and fuel, gas
is among the lowest in the world which confers competitive advantage to BSEM.

We expect a positive year ahead with a decent GDP growth of Bangladesh. There are
short-term challenges to the economy refated with inflation, liquidity and foreign
exchange but by second half of this year, it is expected that the economy will overcome
those challenges. Hopafully the energy crisis may also aase in later half of this year and
government will allow giving new electricity connections to newly constructed buildings
as well as industry.

Additionally, many projects will gain momentum, which are under planning since last
two years or 50 and therefore, demand for steel should grow in 2011,

At 1ast | would like to express my deep gratitude to all of you for your confidence in us.
We believe that coming days will be full of opportunities and our journey to realize those
opportunities and further excel in our endeavors, will continue, We look forward to your
continuous support and prayers during this journey.

May Almighty bless all of us.

Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
to the Shareholders




Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

The Board of Directors is extremely glad to welcome all of you to the Company's 9% Annual General
Meeting. The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2010 along with the
Director's Report and Auditor's Report is presented to you for your kind consideration.

It is the 3" Annual General Meeting after the company's listing with Dhaka and Chittagong Stock
Exchanges in 2009. You are already well informed that we have placed world class equipment in this
plant. It is the most modern fully automatic rolling mill built in the South Asia Region. Though itis a
state of the art plant, our journey was not s0 smooth at the beginning. As you know for past three
years both the international market and local market was volatile and prices of food, fuel and other
commodities fluctuated so sharply that sometimes it was very difficult to take timely and correct
decisions.

However, in spite of such volatility, our management team and dedicated works force made this year
a successful one for our company. We have achieved some land mark suceess this year. Both sales
and production broke all time records of our group.

We have successfully enhanced our production capacity to 550,000 M. Ton per annum this year. We
have also procured 2.89 acres of land to store our finished goods and raw materials and also fo
support our future expansion,

Our management and technical team is continuously trying fo explore new opportunity to enhance
productivity and profitability of the company.

We are determined to maintain our uncompromising stand for producing quality products. As a result
we have gained the confidence and reliance of some leading construction firms. Now a lot of
prestigious infrastructure projects are using our products, like Bahadarhat Flyover Project, 15 KM
long Gulistan-Jatrabari Flyover, Port Facilitation Project, BPDE Hathazari Power Plant Project, BPDB
Dohazarl Power Plant Project, World Trade Centre Chittagong ete. Major Portion of steel re-bars used
for construction of Shah Amanat Bridge was supplied by BSRM.

During the year 2010 our production was 433,823 M Ton which shows 23.83% increase from the last
year. At the same time we sold 433,808 M. Ton (own production) as compared to 346,400 M. Ton in
the previous year. Sales also {own production) increased by 25.23% during this year.

In 2010 the company earned Net profit after tax of Tk. 964 885,985, Last year the amount was Tk.
574,084,231, Net Profit increased by 68.07%. Sales in 2010 was TK. 22,007 ,682,247 which was

also 38.91% (in Tk) higher than the last year, EPS for 2010 is Tk.53.12 which was Tk. 34.43 in 2009,

During the year 2010 our subsidiary company BSREM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. (BISCO) eamed Net profit of
Tk. 109,928 ,802. Consolidated Net Profit after tax is Tk. 1,068,228,190 for the year 2010,
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We are providing some key financial data for your knowledge.

For the Year

Pattar 314 Deember

2010 (Taka)

Turnover 22,007 682 247

Gross Profit 1,828,718,476

Met Profit (After Tax) 964,885,985

Eamings Per Share (EPS) 5312

Net Operating Cash 38.26
Fow per Share

Financial Position of last 5 years

Particulars 200
Non-Current Assets 4 868,208,555
Current Assets 7,365,888 940
Total Assets 12,234,097 495
Share Capital 2,712,500,000
Term Loan 1,197,623,046
Current Liabilities 8,901,598,853
Retained Eamings (577,624,404)
Net Assats Value 2,134 875,506
NAV Per share 78.71
Net Current Assets (1,535,709,813)
Appropriation of Profit

Particulars
Net Profit after Tax
Add: Accumulated |ass carried
from Previous years
Less: Dividend paid for 2009
Accumulated Loss

Far the Year
ended on

31" December
2009 (Taka)
15,843, 586,337
1,581,634,316
574,084,231
3443

(82.13)

2009
3,570,150,748
6,325 213,742
9,895,364,490
1,450,000,000
1,6086,256,485
8164,118,394

(1,325,010,389)
124,989,611
8.62
(1,838,904,652)

For the Year

ended on

31" December
2010 (Taka)
BD Tk

064,885,985

{1,325,010,389)
(217,500,000)
(577,624,404)

For Nine Months
ended on

31" December
2008 (Taka)
5483 534,721
(1,311,367 ,578)
(1,889,094.620)
(153.00)

(367.44)

2008
3,579,943 268
5,127,438,793
8,707,382 061
1,450,000,000
1,893,568,000
7,162,907 681

(1,899,004,620)
(448,004,620)
(30.97)
{2,035,468,888)

For the Year
ended on

31* Decomber
2009 (Taka)
BD Tk

574,084,231
(1,899,094 620

(1,325,010,389)

2007
2.946,782,269
159,083,940
3,105,866,200
1,243,985,000
1,614,497 592
481,517,379
1,243 985,000
100.00
(322,453,439)
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2006
273,507,776
284,234,851
557,832,727
515,070,775

88,941 977

515,070,775

100.00
195,451,232

2005
230,577,899
26,010,984
256,588 883
180,000,000
71,288,445
5,209,437

180,000,000
100.00
20,711,547
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Production in Quantity (M.Ton)

There is no alternative for good corporate governance for sustainable growth and for keeping pace
with time. Keeping this fact in mind we have taken a number of steps for strengthening our corporate
structure.

Under the effective leadership of our management we formulated vision and values for the company.
All senior management staffs with our Chairman, Managing Director and Directors participated in the
day long Vision & Value Workshop. This vision and values will serve as a guiding light under which the
company will serve its clients ensuring that nothing gets in the way of uncompromised customer
service, unsurpassed competitive advantage and service to the citizens of our country through
Corporate Social Responsibilities initiatives.

We have appointed intemational consultants for corporate restructuring. The corporate restructuring
will allow us to recognize what we do best with what we should do keeping our eyes on the future.
By this time consultant has submitted their report defining roles and respensibilities that would
eliminate redundancy and will bring clarity to each job. The plan is in implementation phase showing
promise and results across all functions and departments.
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At the heels of the org structure implementation another HR activity is in progress that will create a
fair and firm system for job evaluation and bonding. This will be followed sometime in the second half
of 2011 with Performance Management System (PMS),

We have undertaken another initiative for evaluating the system integration possibility. We have
appointed an international consultant in an advisory capacity to examine, evaluate and report on
BSRM's readiness to embark on an enterprise system approach.

Effective marketing is essential for creating awareness and demand of our products. In the year 2010
our dedicated marketing team has taken up a number of workshops, seminars, symposiums for creating
awareness about our products especially for BSRM Xireme 500W. Workshops for engineers and masons
were arranged to make them aware about safety features, and economical benefit of our products.

We have also participated in some vital seminars and fair such as “Role of Engineers in tackling
Climate changes” held on 16® and 17® June at which experts from 14 countries attended. We jointly
sponsored special seminar on “Sustainable Development & Environment friendly Building Materials”
organized by Shahajalal University of Science & Technology (SUST). BSRM was the title sponsor for
the International seminar on “Bridge Engineering’ organized by the Roads & Highways Dept. of the
Govt. of Bangladesh in August 8th — 10th 2010,

We have also started to publish a quarterly magazine the “Xtreme Talk" on our activities, interesting
news and stories and our achievements. We believe that, this publication will enable us to share our
emotions and dreams with our valued dealers, customers and other valued stake holders of the
company. It will help in tightening our family bonds as we always treat our valued customers as a
member of BSAM extended family.

For the first time in the history of BSRM Group, we have arranged dealer's nights. Best Performance
Dealer Award was announced in those nights to recognize contribution of the successful dealers. In
fact, without their support it would be impossible for us to continue the company's journey fo the
endless possibilities. Their support, cooperation and advice bring us to this position.

Human resource is one of the greatest assets for the company. Our company believes in the ideology
of achieving excellence through investing in people and technology simultaneously. Company
continues to work for the development and realization of best potential of its personnel. To promote a
climate of motivation and achieve growth, thrust on optimal utilization of manpower with focus on
improvement in productivity will continue. Efforts wera made for promoting better employees. Our
vision is to be an employer of choice with focus on nurturing talemt and developing future leaders of
the organization. Keeping in mind this vision, we have undertaken number of measures for
capacity building. Asalready mentioned corporate re-structuring is under implementation. Our
Consultant has developed corporate structure with job description and qualification for each post.
The group organized nine vision and values communication workshops for management category
staffs to communicate upcoming changes in the new organizational structure. Afterwards similar
program was conducted for non management staffs also.

We also arranged vital training for our staff at home and abroad,

We have also developed the system of nominating the Best Employee each month and award them fo

encourage the total team. We also give award to those who are chosen as value champion which also
mativates our staffs and employees to up hold the vision and values of the group and to live in those valuss.
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Our company has introduced Worker's Profit Participation Fund and Workers Welfare Fund in 2010,
By this time we disbursed significant amount of money for the welfare of our workers.

Credit Rating Information and Services Limited (CRISL) had rated the company and assigned AA
{proncunced as Double A minus) rating in the long term and ST-2 rating in the short term. Grade AA
indicates entities rated in this category are adjudged to be high quality, offer higher safety and have
high credit quality. ST-2 denotes high certainty of timely payment, liquidity factors are strong and
supported by good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors are very small.

We are proud to announce that, recently BSRM Group of Companies has been honored as one of the
most important client in Bangladesh by Agrani Bank Limited. Chairman of the Bank handed over a
crest to one of our Directors in token of this recognition. it should be also mentioned that, in October
2009 our group also got interest rebate of Tk, 3.75 Million for paying of loan on ime.

Our honored shareholders in their 57 Extra-Ordinary General Meeting have approved acquisition of
BSRM Iron & Steel Co Ltd (BISCO), a newly installed billet manufacturing company. This company went
in to commercial operation on 1% June 2010. You are already informed that, the company earned a Net
Profit after tax of Tk 109,828,802 during this year. it should be mentioned here that, BSEM Steels
Limited has acquired 95% of the ordinary share of BISCO on 10" November 2010 after getting approval

from Securities and Exchange Commission. This plant will ensure smooth supply of high quality billet
at a competitive price which will further strengthen BSRM Steels Limited's competitive edge in the
market. We hope to make a hetter profit this year in BISCO with 12 months of operation.

BSRM Group of Companies is involved for the welfare of the society since it's inception in 1952. We
have donated to a number of socio-cultural organizations, educational institutions and religious
seminaries over the years. After BSRM Steels Limited came in to existence, we decided that, we
should re-organize our CSR activities.

Similar to our effort in 2009, we have donated a significant number of road dividers to the Chittagong
and Dhaka Metropolitan police authorities. These dividers are helping to ease traffic congestion
greatly and we are also expanding this activity nationwide.

Another CSR activity is the BSRM School. it was established in 2005 in the heart of a slum at Byzaid
Bostami Area in Chittagong, for the benefit of the poor people who live in the near vicinity. The
majority of the population in that area falls under the category of the 'poorest of poor', many of them
working as Rickshaw pullers, day laborers or employed at menial jobs in small shops. The women,
those who work, find jobs as maids in houses or find employment as day laborers. The school's
mission is to provide free education to the children of this particular slum. No fee of any sort is
charged from the students. At present, there are 330 students enrolled in the school and plans are
underway to expand the premises in order to give opportunity to a greater number of children.

This year we donated for Nimtoli fire incident victims. We also distributed 10,000 blankets among the
poor and needy people this winter. We organized blood donation program. To enrich the quality of
education and research we donated an expensive UTM device to the Civil Engineering dept. of the
Bangladesh University of Engineering & Technology (BUET).

The Board of Directors has re-constituted the Management Committee of the company
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The main task of the committes is to assist the Board of Directors as well as Managing Director. The
committee is mainly involved in developing strategic policy and assists the Board of Directors with
necessary information.

The members of the Management Committee are as follows:;

Mr. Moize Hussain Adviser

Mr. Tapan Sengupta Executive Director

Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed Head Dhaka Office

Mr. M. Firoze Head of Business & Product Development

Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA Head of Finance & Accounts and Company Secretary
Mr, Sunil Kumar Das Head of Plamt

Mr. Mohammed Reazul Kabir ACA Chief Financial Officer

Mr. M. Harunur Rashid Senior Manager, Commercial & Purchase

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA and Mr. Aameir Alihussain retire by rotation as per Section 97 & 98 of the
Articles of Association of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Dur statutory auditor Rahman Rahman Hug, Chartered Accountants, 102 Agrabad Commercial Area,
Chittagong, 2 member firm of KPMG shall retire in this Annual General Meeting.

Securities and Exchange Commission through its notification dated January 3, 2002 restricts
appointment of any firm of Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors for a consecutive period
exceeding three years. Rahman Rahman Hug in 2010 has completed it's 3™ year as an Statutory
Auditor after the Company's listing with the stock exchanges.

As Rahman Rahman Hug being eligible for re-appointment, has offered their willingness to be re
appointed. The Board recommends their re-appointment for the year 2011 and to continue until the
next Annual General Meeting subject to the approval by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend 20% Stock dividend on the paid up capital of Tk.
2,712,500,000 for consideration and approval by the shareholders in the 9th Annual General Meeting.

In compliance with the Clause 1.4 of SEC Notification SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158 /Admin/02-08 dated
20™ February 2006, the Board of Directors confirms that;

{a) The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company presents fairly it's state
of affairs, the result of it's operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

{b) Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.
{c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

(d) Intemational Accounting Standards as applicable in Bangladesh have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements.

{8} The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

{fi There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

{0} There is no significant deviation from last year's operating results except that it profits has gone
up more than last year.
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{h) Key operating and financial data of preceding five years have been provided.
(i) The Board of Directors recommended 20 % Stock dividend for 2010.

() The Number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each Director is given in
Annexure-A

(k} The Pattern of Shareholding is given in Annexure-B.

(I} The Status of Compliance as per SEC guidelines is given in Annexure-C.

The Board of Directors wishes to place on record their appreciation for the support and co-operation

extended by every member of the BSRM family. The Directors would like to express their gratitude for

the cooperation, positive support and guidance extended to the Company by the Government of

Bangladesh, BOI, RJSC, Securities and Exchange Commission, Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

and Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, National Board of Revenue, CDBL and all bankers. The board

takes this opportunity for thanking the Shareholders of the company for their cooperation, guidance

and patience. The Board also likes to record its sincere appreciation for contribution of the valued

customers and the confidence they entrusted upon the company. The board express thanks fo all

employees for their commitment and loyalty to the company.

Allah Hafiz.

M

Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman
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Attendance in the Board Meeting:

During the year total 10 No. Board meetings were held and the attendance by each Director was as
follows:

Name of the Director Designation No of Meeting Attended
Mr. Alihussain Akberali, FCA Chairman 9

Mr. Aameir Alihussain Managing Director g

Mr. Zohair Taherali Director 10

Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali Director 10

Mrs. Sabeen Aameir Director 9

Mr. Qazi Sarwar-E-Alam Independent Director 1

Mr. Qazi Sarwar-E-Alam, Independent Director attended only once meeting out of 10 held during
2010 as he was outside the country. Leave of absence was granted for his absence.

Sharehoiding Position:
Serial Name of the Designation/ No of Share % of
No  Share Holders Relation Holding Shareholdings
As 31 As 31"
December 10 December 10
1 Mr. Alihussain Akberall FGA Chairman 2,795,367 10.306%
2 Mr, Aameilr Allhussain Managing Director 479,432 1.767%
3 Mr. Zohair Taherali Director Ba0, 17 3.136%
4 Mrs. Tehssen Zohair Taherali Director 474,432 1.7459%
5 Mrs. Sabaen Aameir Director 575 0.002%
] Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Aifillated Company 9,134,105 33.674%
Mills Limited
7 H. Akberali & Co Lid Affiliated Company 6,933,700 25.562%
g Mrs. Bilkis Alihussain Spousa of 92720 (1.342%
Mr. Alihussain Akbarali, FCA
] Shekhar Ranjan Kar, FCA Head of Finance & Accounts 2,582 0.010%
And Company Secretary
20,763,630 76.548%
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Status of Compliance
Status of Compliance

Status of compliance with the condition imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/S
2006-158/Admin/02-08 dated 20" February, 2006 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

Condition  Title Compliance Explanation for
No, Status non-compliance with
the condition
1.1 Number of the Board members of the company
should not be less than 5 and moare than 20. Compliad
1.2 (i) Number of Independent Directors should be at
least 1/10 of the total number of Company's
board of Directors. Complied
1.2 (i) Independent Directors should be appointed
by the electad directors. Complied
B Chairman of the Board and Chief Exacutive
Officer should be preferable be filled by
different individuals. Complied
1.4 (a) Fair presentation of Financial Statement. Complied
1.4 (b} Maintenance of Proper books of accounts. Complied
1.4 (c) Appropriate Accounting Policies applied
consistentty. Complied

1.4 (d) International Accounting Standards, as
applicable in Bangladesh have been followed

in preparing the Financial Statement. Complied
1.4 (g) Sound and Effective Internal Control System. Complied
14100 Ability to continue as going concem. Complied
1.4 (o) Significant deviation from last year in

operating results. Complied
1.4 (R) Summery of Key operating results. Comiplied
1.4 (i) Declaration of Dividend Complied
1.4 () Number of Board Meetings held during the

year and attendance by each director. Complied
1.4 (k) Pattern of share holding Complied
2.1 Appointment of a CFO, a Head of Internal

Audit and a Company Secretary. Complied
2.2 Attend the Board meeting by CFO and

Company Secretary. Compliad
3 Constitution of Audit Committes Complied
3.1 1) The Audit Committes should be composed

of at least 3 members. Complied
3.1 (i) The Audit Committee should be appointed by

the Board who are directors and one should

be Independent director. Compliad
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Condition  Title

3.1 (i)

32()

3.2 (i)

3.3.1 1)

Board of Directors should fill up the vacancy
within one month of the vacancy in
the Audit Committes.

Board of Directors should select one member
of the Audit Committes as Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

Chairman of the Audit Committee should have
a professional qualification of knowledge,
understanding and exparience in accounting
or finance.

Activities of the audit committee to the
Board of Directors.

3.3.1 (i) (&) Report on conflict of interest.
3.3.1 (i) (p) Report on Fraud or iregularity o material

defect in internal control system.

3.3.1 (i) (c) Report on infringement of laws, including

socurity related laws, rules and regulations.

3.3.1 (ii) (d) Report on any other matter which should be

332
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4,00 (i)
4,00 (il
4.00 (i

4,00 (iv)
4.00 (v)
4.00 (vi)
4.00 (vii

disclosed to the Board of Directors’ immediately

Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit
Committes has reported to the Board of
Directors about anything which has impact on
the financial condition and results of cperation
and being ignored by the Board of Directors,
the Audit Committee should report such
findings to the Commission,

Reporting to the Shareholders: Report on
activities carried by the Audit Committee
including any report made to the Board of
Directors under condition. 3.3.1 (i) and the
disclosure of which should be made in the
annual report.

Appraisal or valuation of services or
fairmess opinions,

Financial information system design and
implamentation.

Book-keeping or other services related to the
accounting records or financial statemants.

Broker-dealer services.
Actuarial services
Internal audit services,

Any other service that the Audit Commitiee
determines.

Compliance Explanation for
Status non-compliance with
the condition

N/A

Complied

Complied

Complied
N/A

/A
Complied

Complied

N/A

Compliad
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied
Complied

Complied
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of the Audit Committee OF BSRM STEELS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

For the year 2010
Repart on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Consalidated Financial Statemants of BSAM Steals Limited and its subsidiary(ithe 'Group') which
is comprised of the Consolidated Statement of Finanmcial Position as at 31st December 2010, Consolidated Statement of
To:  The Board of Directors Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statemant of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
BSAM Steels Limited entled, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
The Audit Committes Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
;: Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh
The Audit Committee consists of the following members: Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control a management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA —Chairman of the Committee financial statements that are frae from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
M i Tl ~Hemhar Auditor's Responsibility
Mrs. Sabeen Aameir ~Member

L. We conducted our awdit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
Mr. Qazi Sarwar-E-Alam —Member requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

: e : . . material misstatement.
The main task of the Audit committee is o review the following areas and to report to the Board of Directors, An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The

if necessary. procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
»  To review the existing internal control system and if there is any weakness to modify the system. financial s_latements, w!mlher du:_*. to fraud or error. In maklng_ those risk nm_assments, the _aurllh:r n_:mslders internal control relegant

‘ ; il =, to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

*  To develop an adequate information technology and MIS and establishing sufficient control In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
system in IT operation, also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made

by managemant, as wall as evaluating the overall presantation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit epinion.
The financial statements of the Company's subsidiary, BSAM Iron and Steel Company Limited(BISCO) was not audited by us. The

*  To review the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements and ensuring compliance with BFRS
and other applicable rules and regulations.

»  To review the activities of Internal Audit Department and take necessary action on the basis of Financial Statements of the BISCO shows total assets of Taka 2,320,286,315 as on 31st December 2010 and total revenue of Taka
internal audit report. 3,263 482916 for the year then ended. Messrs Basu Banerjes Nath & Co., Chartered Accountants has audited the Financial
. J \ 3 Staternents of BISCO and they have expressed an ungualified opinion on these Financial Statements. Our opinion, in 50 far as it relates
*  Toinvestigate on any suspected fraud and manipulation. 1o the amounts included in respect of the company's subsidiary, Is based on the reports of subsidiary's auditor as mentioned above.
Activities carried out by Audit Committee Opinion:
1. During the year Internal Audit Policy and procedures has been approved by the B of “In our apinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial

position of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of iis consolidated financial parformance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards."

Directors as recommendation made by this committae.

2. The Committee has reviewed all Reports produced by the internal Audit Department and fook
necessary action on it. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

3. The Committee has reviewed all quarterty and annual Financial Statements of the Company. In our gpinian, the financial statements comply with the applicable sections of the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange

2 ; s . - . Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and lations.
4. There was no significant fraud or manipulation unveiled by the committee during the year under i i

TEVIEW. We also report that :

(@) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

() in our opinion, proper books of accownt as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appearad from our

Alihussain Akberali FCA examination of those books;

Chairman (c) the Statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the

ooks of accounts; and

i d) the expenditure incurred were for the purposes of the companies' businesses.

Chittagong, 31st March, 2011, ll'V’ — A __m‘

A s e e O
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BSRM STEELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2010

2010 2008
Taka Taka
Assels

BSRM STEELS LI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER,2010

Revenue 23
Property, plant and equipment at cost 4 4,266,584,753 Cost of sakes 24 (14,33152,&1}
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (316,428 223) Gross Profit 1,581,634,316
3,950,166,530 Selling and distribution cost 25 (132,417,279}
Capital Work-in-Progress 5 1,655,150 General and administrative cost 26 (82,846,763)
Unaliocated revenue expenses B 180,074,721 (215,264,042}
Preliminary expenses 36,985 1,366,370,274

Total non-current assets 4,131,933,386 Dther incoma 27 678,716
Inventories 7 3,m,1 '.H,I'.Eﬂ Resulls from operating activities 1 ,Bﬂ?m,m
Accounts recelvables 8 762,047,139
Due from affiliated company 9 893,362,894 Finance Income 28 8,359,685
Advances, cleposits and pre-payments 10 2,241,976,912 Finance Costs 29 (769,713,119}
Cash and Bank balances 11 188,064,606 Share issue expanses {1,391,102)

Total current asssts 7,389,585 661 (762,744,536)

Total assets 11,521,519,047 Net Profit before tax and WPPF and Weitare fund 604,304,454

Contribution to Workers® Profit Participation _

Equity Fund and Welfare Fund 21 {30,215,223)
Share Capital 12 1,450,000,000 Net Profit before tax 574,089,231
Accumulated Loss (1,325,010,389) Income Tax Expenses:

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 124,989,611
Non-controlling interest 453,400,000 Current Tax: 3.14

Total equity 578,389,611 Current year (5,000)

Liabilities - Pravious year -
Long Term Loan 13 2,639,204,658 (5,000)

5 Net Profit aftes tax for the year 574,084,231

Total non-current liabilities 2,639,204 658 Other comprehensive incoma -
Short term liabilities 14 7,272,573,290 Total comprehensive income for the year 574,084,231
Liabilities for expenses 15 75,398,829
Advance against sales 16 _5_1&1 g-t.zaa ] Net Profit after tax attributable to: _

Long Term Loan - Current portion 17 415,346,724 Shareholders of the company ﬁsn'-,mi,m‘l
Liability against Share Application Money 18 51,871,335 Non-controlling interest

Due to affiliated companies 19 71,535,777 mm,zm
Provision for Income Tax 20 5,000 Earnings per share (EPS) 30 34.43
Provision for WPPF and Weltare fund 21 30,215,223

Other liabilities 22 38,854,365

Total current liabilities 8,303,924,778

Total Habilities 10,943,129,436 =

Total equity and liabilities 11,521,519,047

The annexed notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these consoligated financial statements. . Managing Director Bifector Company Secretary

As per our annexed report of same date.
l % Chittagong, 31st March, 2011.

Managing Director Company Secretary | S

Aspurmmmdmpmafmm Rahman Fahman
Chittagong, 315t March, 2011, _'::_‘:-\ cmmmmm
Rahman Rahman Hug
Chartered Accountants
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BSRM STEELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2010

BSRM STEELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2010

2010
Taka !'altl

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Balance as on Paid against revenue expenditure 1:51156‘332!]
1 January 2009 Recaipts from customers for sales 15,412,719625
Paid to suppliers against procurement of raw material and Wﬂﬁ]
Ordinary Shares issugd & 408,550,000 finished goods
during the year 2009 Paid to suppliers against procurement of consumakbles wmm
- Advance received against sales mm,ﬂﬁ
Net profit after tax - 574,084,231 Advances made (1,943,402,045)
for the year 2009 ' Payment for share issue expenses {13‘110&]
Security Deposits {23,633,518)
Balance as at 1,450,000,000  (1,325,010,389) 578,389,611 Pre-payments (2477,544)
31 December 2009 Receipt against other income 9,038,401
Payment of interest mmﬁq
Issue of Bonus Share 217,500,000 " Short term loan paid to Bangladash Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd-net (452,753,157)
Short term loan paid to affiliated companies -
Orcinary Shares issued ~1,045,000,000 1,691,600,000 income Tax Paid (29,.246,376)
gt : " e
Met cash used in Operating Activities (2,094,240,485)
Adjustment against changes - 00) (1,045,000,000)
in ownership of subsidiary INVESTING ACTIVITIES: -
Acquisition of Fixed assets {51'5"29|'I.u1ﬂ
Net Profit after tax - 1,073,667,253 Disposal of fixed assets
for the year 2010 . ' Un-aliocated revenue expenditure ﬁﬂms,m]-
Capital Work-in-progress (1,655,150)
Balance as at 2,712,500,000 2,208,656,864 - .
31 December 2010 Net cash used in Investing Activities (679,564,488)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Share issued during the year 406,550,000
Repayment/Receipt of Syndicated Term Loan En,ms,m
Short term loan received 1,551 m.um
Term Loan-BMRE _
Share application money refund/receipt {1 115,22&3011
Net cash provided by Financing Activities 1,521,588,678
Total [a+b+c) (1,252,216,209)
Opening cash and bank balances 1,441,280,985
Closing cash and bank balances 189,064,696
(1,252,216,299)

. BSRM Stests Limitad | Annual Report 2010
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BSRM STEELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%" DECEMBER, 2010

REPORTING ENTITY

Company profile

The Company was incorporated on 20th July, 2002, vide the certificate C-No. 4392 of 2002 as a private limited company
under Companies Act 1994, The company was converted to a public limited company on 20th December 2006. The
company is [isted with Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange as a publicly quoted company. Trading of
the shares of the company started in two stock exchanges from 18th January, 2009,

Mature of Business

The main purpese of the company is to manufacture M.5.products by setting up rolling and re-rolling mills. The company
has set up its Rolling mill at 4 Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Latifpur, Sitakunda, Chittagong and commenced commercial
production from 15t April, 2008,

Description of subsidiary BSRM Iron and Steel Company Limited

BSRM Steels Limited has acquired 95% equity interest in BSRM Iron and Steed Co. Lid. i, 10,450,000 Ordinary Shares
of Tk, 100/~ each on 10" November 2010 in exchange of 10,450,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 100/~ each in BSRM Steels
Limited.

The company was incorporated on 13th April 2005 as a private limited company. The principal activity of the company is
to manufacture M.S. Billets . The company commenced commercial production from 1% June, 2010.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the
Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh.

The consolidated financial statements have baen authorized for issue by the board of directors on 315t March 2011,

Basis of measuranment
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

Functional and pressntation currency

The financial statements are presented In Bangladesh Taka which s the Company's functional currency. All financial
information presented in BD Taka has been rounded off {0 the nearest Taka.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Reporting period
The financial period of the companies covers one year from 1st January fo 31st December and is followed consistantly.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consofidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistentty by Group entities.

Certain comparative amounts have been rectassified to contorm with the current year's presentation. In addition, the
consalidated financial statements have been presented as if acquistion of subsidiary was acquired before 2009,

. BSAM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010
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Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary

The subsidiary is the entitiy controlled by BSRM Steels Limited. Control exists when BSEM Steels Limited has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiary are
included in the consolidated financial statements upon establishemnt of that control until the date that control ceases.
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have bean changed when it is necessary 1o align them with the policies adopted
by BSAM Steals Limited.

Acquisitions from entities under common control

Business comblnation arising from transfers of interests in the entity that Is under the control of the shareholders that
controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative year
presented ; for this purpose comparatives are restated, The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the canrying
amaurits. The components of equity of the acquired entity are added to the same components within Group equity and
any gain/loss arising is recognisad diractly in eguity.

Transactions eliminated on consofidation

Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealized income and expanses arising from infra-group fransactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized Insses, if any, are eliminated in the same
way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent there is no evidence of impairment.

Property, plant and eguipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the assets, The cost of salf constructed
finstalled assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the

assets to the working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restaring the
site on which they are located,

Subsequent cosls

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognisad in the carrying amount of the item if
It is probable that the future benefit embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of the day to day sarvicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit and loss as
ingurrad.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit and loss account on diminishing balance method over the estimated useful lives of
fiwed assets. Full year's depreciation is charged on addition imespective of the date of acquisition and no depreciation is
charged In the year of disposal. The principal annual rates are as follows.

Asseis Rates (%)
Plart and Machinery 5%
Motor Vehicle 20%
Furniture and Fodures 10%
Office Equipments 10%
Factory Bulldings 5%
Roads and Pavements 58
Trademark 5%

Depreciation methods,useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date,

Inventories

Imventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurmed
in acquiring these inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition In accordance with BAS-2.

BSAM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010 o
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Category Valuation

Finished Goods - Finished Goods are valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.
Raw materials - Raw Materlals are valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.
Store items- Basad on weighted average method.

Leased assels
Operating Lease:

Paymenis made under operating leases are recognised in Statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given in return. After initial
recognition, these are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any, due o uncoflectibility of any amount so recognised.

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Advances are initially measured af cost. After initial recognition, advances are camied at cost less deducitons,
adjustments or charges to other account heads such as property, plant and equipment, inventory or expenses.

Deposits are measured at payment value,

Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less charges to
Statement of comprehensive income.

CGash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term fixed deposits with banks.

impairment

Property, plant and equipment:

The carrying amount of the company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
Ioss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-genarating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Receivables:

Company policy is to provide for impaimment loss on detriors, if any receivables are not realized within three years from
due date.

Employee benefit schemes

A Contributory Provident Fund has been infroduced and the fund has obtained recognition from Tax Authority on
25.11.2009. The Provident Fund started its operation from 1st January, 2010,

Appropriate provision has been made for Workers' Profit Participation Fund and Workers' Welfare Fund as per provisions of law.

Provisions

A provision Is recognized If, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settie the obligation.

Interest income and expenses
Interest income has been recognised on cash basis.
Interest expenses incurmed during the year have been charged to Statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are converted at the rates ruling on the dates advices are received. Monetary assets and

liabilities are recorwerted at rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are charged/credited to
Statement of comprehensive income by being absorbed in the respective head of income or expenditure.

0 BSAM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010
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Contingencies
Contingencies ariging from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Income tax expenses

Current tax

Provision for income tax has been made as per provisions of income tax laws.
Deferred tax

In view of the accumulated loss as on 315t December 2010, net deferred tax assels against unabsorbed assessed tax
losses and taxable temporary differences have not been recognised in the books of accounts.

Hevenue

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of retums and
allowances, trade discounts and rebates, if amy. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been {ransferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated refiably and there is no continuing management invalvement with the goods,

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic Eamings

This represents profit for the year atiributable to ordinary shareholders. As there is no preference dividend or extra
ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year less noncontrofiing interest has been considered fully attributable to
the ordinary shareholders(refer to Note-30 to the Financial Statements).

Diluted Earnings per share
No diluted eamings per share Is required to be calcutated for the year as there is no scope for dilution during the year
under auwdit,

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2009 for all numeric information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current year's
financial statements.

Figures for the year 2009 have been rearranged wherever considerad necessary to ensure comparability with the current
yEar,

BSAM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010 0 R R
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b) Deposits
AnsarNDP
T&T
City Cell
Power Development Board
RanksTell
Save the children UK
Karnaphuli Gas Distribution Co. Lid.
Kolkata office premises
Central Depaository Bangladesh Limited
(thers

c) Prepayments

Insurance premium
B5TI licence fee

Total (a+b+c)

The directors consider that all the above advances and prepayments
are recoverable in kind or in cash and that no provision against them
are required at this stage.

11.00 CONSOLIDATED CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at Banks

Fixed Deposit

12.00 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised capital:
47,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 100 each
2,500,000 Preference Shares of Tk, 100 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital:
14,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- each

10,450,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- sach
fully paid-up for consideration other than cash

2,175,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- sach
fully paid-up as Bonus Shares
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12.1

12.02

13.00

13.0

Classification of shares by holding

Class by number of shares No. of Holders No. of Shares thimg
Hns Hnu

Less than 500 5.31
From 500 to 5,000 G - 5.92
From 5,001 to 10,000 2.04
From 10,001 to 20,000 2
From 20,001 to 30,000 0.89
From 30,001 to 40,000 117
From 40,001 to 50,000 0.70
From 50,001 to 100,000 1.84
From 100,001 o 1,000,000 10.46
From 100,001 to above 60.46
Total 100.00

Composition of Shareholders at 31* December 2010

Name of shareholdars No. of Holders No. of Shar Hnldinn
I'lus Hul

Sponsor Shareholders-Local
Sponsor Shareholders- Foreign
Other Shareholders
| I
Taka Taka
CONSOLIDATED LONG TERM LOAN
Syndicated Term Loan (Note-13.01) 2,639,204,658
Term Loan for BMRE(Note-13.02.04) -
2,639,204 658
SYNDIGATED TERM LOAN
Due within one year 415,346,724
Due after more than one year 2,639,204 658
3,054,551,382
Lender-wise details of Syndicated Term Loan are as follows:
Syndicated Term Loan
AB Bank Ltd. 120,054,143
Agrani Bank Ltd, 95,275,742
Bank Al Falah Ltd. 79,687,391
Bank Asia Ltd, 156,748,004
BRAC Bank Lid. 73,687,391
Commercial Bank of Ceylon 79,687,391
Dhaka Bank Ltd, 76,060,909
Eastern Bank Lid. 191,923,960
IFIC Bank Ltd, 79,687,391
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 39,843,732
National Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd. 120,213,959
Prime Bank Ltd 99,950,675




. ]
Taka Taka
Pubali Bank Ltd. | 95745388 120,213,859
SABINCO Ltd, 138,616,139
Standare Bank Lid, 189,252,746
The City Bank Lid, 176,708,499
The Trust Bank Ltd. 140,526,315
United Commercial Bank Ltd. 340,288,771
Uttara Bank Lid. 160,057,774
BSRS(Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd.) 54,071,678
Industiral & Infrastructural Develpement Finance Go (IDFC ) 40,555,885
Janata Bank Ltd, 107,848,536
Mutual Trust Bank Limited 72,786,669
One Bank Lid. 72,839,761
Rupali Bank Ltd. T1.767.726
Sonali Bank Lid. 141,195,236

3,054,651,382

13.02 Terms of Syndicated Loan-BSRM Steels Limited

13.062.01 First Syndicated Term Loan:
Lenders:
The company has entered into a syndicated loan agreement on 30.06.2006 with Agrani Bank Limited, the lead
arranger,

IDLC of Bangladesh, the co-arranger and 18 (Eighteen) other Banks and Financial institutions.

Total loan facilities: Tk. 198.70 crores.

Interest rate:

Interest rate is determined based on the 6 months T-bill rate plus 6%.

Disbursement:

The first dishursement was made on 18.01.2007

Repayments:

Above term loan will be re-paid by 66 monthly instaliments starting from August, 2008.

Instaliments due within 31 December 2010 were duly paid.

Securities:

Registered Mortgage on project land, building on first ranking parr passu basis and hypothecation of Machinery,
Furniture & Fixtures, Equipment etc.

Purpose:

The purposa of the loan is to set up a fully computer-controdied, fully automatic steel re-rolling mill with a capacity of
375,000 Metric tons per year.

13.02.02 Second Syndicated Term Loan:
Lenders
The company has entered into a second syndicated loan agreement on 26.11.2007 with Agrani Bank Ltd., the lead
arranger, IDLC of Bangkadash, the co-arranger and 10 (Ten) other Banks.
Total loan facilities: Tk. 50.50 crores.
Interest rate
Interest rate is determined based on the 6 months T-bill rate plus 6%.
Dishursement:
The first dishursement was made on 06.03.2008.
Instaliments due within 31 December 2010 were duly paid.
Repayments:
Above term loan will be re-paid by 66 monthly instaliments starting from August, 2008.
Securities:
Registered Mortgage on project land including newly acquired 35.55 katha, building on first ranking parri passu basis
and hypothecation of Machinery, furniture & Fixtures, equipment etc.
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13.02.03 Terms of Syndicated Loan-B5SRM lron and Steel Company Limited({BISCO)

Lenders:
The company has entered into a syndicated loan agreement on 01-06-2010 with IDFC, the lead arranger and 13
(thirteen) other Banks.

Total Loan Facilities: Taka 136.20 crores.

Interest Rate:
Initially interest rate was 13.00% but subsequently the rate has been redueed to 11.50% with effect from 01-06-2010.

Dishursement:
Tha first disburseament was made on February 2010.

Repayments:
The facility will be repayable in 18 (eighteen) quarterly installments commencing from the end of 21st month of disbursement.

Securities:
Registerad mortgage on project land, bullding on first ranking parr passu basks and hypothecation of machinery,
furniture & fixtures, equipments etc.

Purpose:
The purpose of the loan |s to set up a fully computer- controlled, fully automatic billet making plant.

2009
I

13.02.04Term Loan for BMRE-BSRM Steels Limited
Due within one year
Due after more than one year

Terms of BMRE Loan:

Lenders:
Agrani Bank Ltd. has sancioned a loan amount of Tk. 32 crore for BMRE and disbursed Th. 56,224,000 upto 31.12.2010.

Total loan facilities: Ti. 32 crores.

Interest rate:

[rterast rate (s 129% per annum and will be calculated on guarterly basis.

Disbursement:

The first disbursement was made on 26.09.2010.

Repayments

Above term loan will be re-paid by 48 monthly installments starting from October, 2011,

Securities:

Registered Mortgage on project land, building on first ranking parri passu basis and hypothecation of Machinery,
Furniture & Fixtures, Equipment otc.

Purpose:

Acquisition of plant and machineries to enhance production of existing project from 375,000 Metric Tons per year to
500,000 Matric Tons,
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14.00 CONSOLIDATED SHORT TERM LIABILITIES
Loan against Trust Receipt (LTR) [Mote-14.01]
Time loan (Note-14.02)

Loan receipts against Demand Loan (Note-14.03)
Dhaka Bank Ltd.(0/D)

Uttara Bank Ltd.{C/C)

National Credit and Gommerce Bank Lid., G/C
United Leasing Co Ltd-Factoring Loan

Pubali Bank Ltd., O/D

Eastern Bank Ltd 0/D

Brac Bank Ltd., 0/D

IFDBC {Note-14.04)

Standard Chertered Bank- Revolving Loan A/G
Shajalal Islami Bank Lid., (Bai-Muazzal)
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. SOD

AB Bank Ltd.

One Bank Ltd.

HSEC

14.01 Loan against Trust Receipt (LTR)
AB Bank Limited
Al-Arafa lsaimi Bank Ltd
Bank Asia Ltd
Brac Bank Lid
Dhaka Bank Lid.
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd-JBL Br
Eastern Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited
Marcentile Bank Ltd
National Credit and Cormmerce Bank Lid
National Bank Ltd.
Ong Bank Lid
Pubali Bank Ltd
Shajalal Islami Bank Limited
Trust Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Ltd.
Uttara Bank Ltz
Social lslami Bank Lid
State Bank of India
City Bank Ltd
Commercial Bank of Caylon
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198,215,606
219,513,601

305,518,478
160,231,350

23,706,807

149,713,761
180,843,982

231,914,311
426208
196,884,629

131,458,616
173,241,402
167,904,902
444184018
238,303,685
29,799,402
5,278 497
172,837,925
88,808,320
101,764,699
158,918,970
3,432,305,144

200 2009
I I

14.02 Detalls of Time Loan
AB Bank Ltd
Brac Bank Ltd.
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

14,03 Details of Demand Loan
Eastern Bank Lid.
Bank Asia Ltd
IFIC Bank Ltd

14,04 Details of Inland Foreign Documentary Bills for Collection (IFDBC)
AB Bank Limited
Bank Asia | td
Dhaka Bank Limited
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd
Islami Bank Limited
Mercantile Bank Limited
National Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd
One Bank Limited
Pubali Bank Limited
Shajalal lslami Bank Limited
Standard Charterd Bank Limited
The City Bank Limited
State Bank of India
National Bank
Brac Bank
Commercial Bank of Ceylon
Agrani Bank
Basic Bank Ltd.
Trust Bank Limited
United Commercial Bank Limited

15.00 CONSOLIDATED LIABILITIES FOR EXPENSES
Audit Fees
Kamaphuli Gas Distribution Co. Ltd,
BOC Bangladesh
Brokerage and commission
C & F Bill Payable
Advertisement bills
Godown rent
Guest House rent
Imprest Cash Settlement

33,264,038

50,183,333
83,447,311

49,483,533
2,126,742
83,812,177
135,422,452

319,386,234
315,430,107
258,529,599
286,928,971
317,904,851
107,437 465
141,800,349
376,970,016
111,887,836
165,814,750
126,522,954
145,034,509
281,707,467

73,688,474
110,502,439
3,461,636,504

123,300
7.474,733
73,516
1,600,000
212,256
15,117,342
14,000
149,840
300,229




Insurance Fayable 21.00 CONSOLIDATED PROVISION FOR WPPF AND WELFARE FUND

Liability against supply of goods Opening balance as on 01 January .
Carriage on purchase Provided during the year: -
Others BSRM Stegls Limited 30,215,223
Carriage on sales BSRM fron and Steel Co. Ltd. »
Overtime allowances 30,215,223
Salary & Allowances mﬁ-m
Saonia Paribahan Paid during the year St
THERE S Closing balance as on 31 December 30,215,223
ULE Bill Collection
L/G Liability 22.00 CONSOLIDATED OTHER LIABILITIES -
Sayera and Nizam Enterprise Income Tax deducted at source from salary 653,566
Office rent Security Deposit 5,213,616
Ruby Investment Co Income Tax deducted at source-others 9,339,335
Other creditors VAT deducted at source 2,475,199
Eamest/Retention Money 17,012,649
Finished Goods Handling Charge
16.00 ADVANCE AGAINST SALES Liabilities for L/C 4,160,000
These represent the advances received against sales of finished goods Leasa Liahilities =
mumwmmmmmmmwmnme 38,854,365
Statement of Financial Position date. :
17.00 CONSOLIDATED LONG TERM LOAN-CURRENT PORTION 23.00 CONSOLIDATED REVENUE -
This represent current portion of long term loans from financial institutions | Xireme-500W 12,390,439,249
which are repayable within next tweive months from January, 2011 " D-Bar Grade-60 - 97,300,950
and consist of as follows: D-Bar GR300 1,891,248 262
Syndicated Term Loan D-Bar GR 400 790,075,885
Term Loan for BMRE D-Bar Grade-40 322,089,112
D-Bar Grade-75 25,650,799
Miss Folls 218,891,591
18.00 LIABILITY AGAINST SHARE APPLICATION MONEY Sales of Shaft 20,995
The above amounts is in the of shares which no 0.4
mMﬂmeMmm. st :ﬁﬁw 7,860,494 .-
19,00 CONSOLIDATED DUE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES hdbiaiauinds
East Bengal Trading and Industrial Corporation Ltd. 24,00 CONSOLIDATED COST OF SALES
Cost of sales- Finished goods procured and sold (Note:24.02) 446,083,632
20.00 CONSOLIDATED PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 14.261,982,021
Gpening halance as on 01 January 24,01 COST OF SALES-OWN PRODUCTION
mm“;"' Opening Stock of Raw Materials 344,052,280
Add: Purchase during the 13,661,108,854
Against previous years L 1&21&
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 1,219,731,132
Raw Materials Consumed 12,785,430,002

Adjusted with advance income tax paid at source
Closing balance as on 31 December
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2402

-Salary and wages

Overtime

Casual wages

Diract axpansas

Direct material consumed
Factory overhead (Note-24.03)
Packaging cost

Power

Gas

Management Fees

Fuel and Lubricants
Mechanical store consumption
M35 Roll Consumption
Electrical Store consumption
General store consumed
Godown rent

Depreciation (Nate- 4.00)

Cost of Goods Manufactured
Add: Opening Stock of Finished Goods

Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods
Cost of sales

COST OF SALES-FINISHED GOODS PROCURED AND SOLD

Opening stock of finished goods as on 1 January
Finished goods purchased from outside

Less: Closing stock of finished goods as on 31 December

24.03 Factory overhead

Billet cutting charge
Bonus

Carrying charges
Compuler expenses
Conveyance EXpenses
[E-mail expenses
Entertainment
Factory office expenses
General expenses
Generator expenses
Guest house expenses
Insurance expenses
Medical expenses
Paper and periodical
Postage and telegram
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25.00

26.00

Repairs and Maintenance
Uniform expenses
Salarles & allowances
Land revenue

OT Wages

Godown rent

Wasa

Special allowance
Staff welfare expenses
Servicing charge
Misc. expenses

Driver allowance
Electric espenses

COMSOLIDATED SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Advertisement

Brokerage and commission
Carriage on sales

Discount allowed

Export charges

Electricity expenses-Depot
Debtors written off

Loss In transit

Sales promotion expenses
Godown rent

CONSOLIDATED GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors’ remuneration
Salaries and allowances
Overtime allowance
Fees and renewals
Aucit fees

Bonus

Carrying charge
Consulting fea
Conveyance expenses
Donation and subscriptions
Entertainment

E-mail expense

General expenses
Guest house expenses
Legal expenses

Land Revenue

78,914,851
4,116,105
367,860
183,112
1,152,000
154
7,641,060
1,084,700

132,417,219

15,800,000
23,584,186




Repairs and maintenance
Office expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Office rent

Postage expenses
Printing

Stationery

Paper and Perindicals
Telephone expenses
Training expenses
Traveling expenses
Depreciation (Note-4.00)
Electricity Expenses
Medical Expenses

27.00 CONSOLIDATED OTHER INCOME
Miscelianeous income
Truck/trailer rent received
Loss on sale of fixed assets

28.00 CONSOLIDATED FINANCE INCOME
Interest on IPO deposit
Interest income from FDR
Interest on STD
Interest Realisation

29.00 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest on Cash credit
Interest on LTR
Interest on Demand and Time loan
Interest on Syndicated Term loan
Interest on BMRE Term loan
Amrangers’ Commision
Bill collection charge
Bank charges
Bank Guarantee Commission
Interest on STD and Others
Interest on Overdraft
Interest on export loan
Interest on lease liabilitias

L (B) o5AM Steels imited (Annual Report 2010

30.00

31.00

32.00

CONSOLIDATED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Basic earnings per share (EPS):

Profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders 574,084,231
Weighted Average number of shares outstanding during the year 16,675,000
Basic eamnings per share (EPS) 3443
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Tranzactiong 3122010
Bangladlesh Steel Re-Roling Mis Lt Material supply/ 1  Market price
Short ferm loan/
Sale of Rod
BSRM Wires Lid Material supply Market price
Meghna Enginesring Works Lid Matzrial supply/ o
Sale of Rod Market price
Kamatully Engineering Works Ltd  Godowm hire Markst price
Citagony Power Company Ltd. Godawn hire. Market rice
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The following contingent liabilities existed on the Statement of Financial Position date:

L/C Liability Taka Taka

Agrani Bank Ltd,

Dhaka Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Branch
Bank Asia Ltd., Agrabad Branch
Mercantile Bank Ltd., Jubilee Road Branch.
IFIC Bank Ltd

Commercial Bank of Ceylon

AB Bank Ltd

NCC bank Ltd

Prime Bank Lid

Slate Bank of India

The City Bank Ltd

Littara Bank Ltd

Eastern Bank Ltd., Agrabad Branch

Pubali Bank Ltd. Agrabad Branch
Shahjalal islami Bank Limited, Jubliee Road Branch
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Branch
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd

Al Aratah lslami Bank Ltd

BASIC Bank Ltd

DBBL, Jubllee Road Branch
National Bank Ltd

Standerd Chartered Bank Ltd

Social Istami Bank Ltd

Trust Bank Lid

BRAC Bank

One Bank Lid

Jamuna Bank Lid




2010 2008
| & ] &

32.02 Bank Guaraniee

IFIC. Bank Ltd 13,600,095
Bank Guarantee Against Bakhrabad Gas System 10,912,500
Trust Bank Lid, .
24,603 495

3,750,902,225

33.00 CAPITAL COMMITMENT
The group had no capital commitment at the balance sheet date.

34.00 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Directors of BSRM Steels Limited in their meeting held on 315t March, 2011 recommended 20% Stock
dividend for the year 2010,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BSRM STEELS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial Statements of BSRM Steels Limited which is comprised of the Statement of Financial

Position as at 31st December, 2010, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation.

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thesa financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control 2 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance
with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain awdit evidence about the amounts and disclosuras in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whather due o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
fo the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order fo design audit progedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our apinion, the financial statements prasent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BSAM Steels Limited as at 31st
December, 2010 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the vear then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial
Reparting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements comply with the applicable sections of the Companies Act, 1984, the Securities and Exchange
Fules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that;

() we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our
examination of those books;

(g} the Statement of fiancial position and Statements of Comprehensive Income dealt with by the report are in agreament with the
books of account; and

{d) the expenditure incurred were for the purposes of the company's business.

Chittagong, 317 March, 2011, L\ﬂ—j\?\
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BSRM STEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 315T DECEMBER, 2010

I T )
Taka

BSRM STEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2010

2010
Taka lel

Revenue 15.&!3.33.33?
Non-current assets: Cost of sales 24 (14,261 052021}
Property, plant and equipment at cost 4 3,884,923 821 Gross profit 1,581,634,316
Accumulated Depreciation (31&.42!.223]
3,568,495,598 Selling and distribution costs 25 (132,417,279)
Capital work in progress 5 1,655,150 Administrative costs 26 (82,846,763)
Investrment 7 - 1,366,370,274
Total non-current assets m’lﬂ,ﬂl Other income 27 678,716
- Resiilts from aperating activities 1,367,048,990
Current assots: Finance costs 28 (768,71 3,11 9
Inventories 8 3,303,134,020 Finance income 29 8,350,685
Trade Debtors 9 762,047,139 Share Issue expenses (1,391,102)
Due from atfiliated companies 10 893,362,894 762,744,536)
Advances, deposits and prepayments 1 1,178,434,542 Net Profit before tax and WPPF and Welfare Fund 604,304,454
Cash and cash equivalents 12 188,235,147 Contribution to WPPF and Welfare Fund (30,215,223)
Total current assets 6,325,213,742 Profit before income tax 574,089,231
Total assets 0,895,364,490 Income tax expenses:
Current Tax: 314
Equity and Liabilities Current year {5.000)
Share capital 13 1,450,000,000 Previous year -
Accumulated Loss (1,325,010,389) ~ (5,000)
Total equity 124,989,611 Net profit atter tax for the year 574,084,231
Other comprehensive income -
Liahilities 574,084,231
Non-curront liabilities Earnings per share:
Long term loan 14 1,606,256,485 Basic eamings per share 30 3443
Total non-current liabilities 1m :
Trade creditors- Subsidiary 15 - The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Short term liabilities 16 7,272,573,290
Liabilities for expenses 17 67,127,022
Advance against sales 18 348,124,235
Long term loan-current portion 19 415,346,724
Liability against share application money 20 8,581,826 ~
Provision for income tax 21 5,000 %—- W
Provision for WPPF and Welfare Fund 30,215223 it - A
Other liabilities 2 22,145,074 Managing Director Company Secretary
Total current liahilities 8,164,118,394 PO ST BRING SR 1 s i
Total liabilities 8,770,374,879
Total liabilities and equity 9,895,364,450 o g w
Chittagong, 31st March, 2011. Rahman Rahman Hug
The ntfﬂ1h35hﬂnmhtegmlpnﬂnfﬂ'ﬂﬂ statements. W Chartared Accounfants
Ui e
As per our annexed report of same date.
b s
Chittagong, 31st March, 2010, O Auditors ==
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BSRM STEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2010

I el e
Taka

Bakance as on 1 January 2009

Net profit after tax for the year 2009
Balance as at 31 December 2009

Issue of Bonus Share

Issue of ordinary Share on acquision of BESCO
Net Profit after tax for the year 2010

Balance as at 31 December 2010
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1,450,000,000

oo

1,045,000,000

2,712,500,000

Loyl
124,989,611

1,045,000,000

964,885,985

T

BSRM STEELS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER, 2010

I I

DPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Paid against revenua expanditure
Receipts from customers for sales

Paid to suppliers against procurement of raw material and finished goods

Paid to suppliers against procurement of consumables
Advance received against sales

Advances made

Payment for share issue axpenses

Security Deposits

Pre-payments

Recaipt against other income

Payment of interest

Short term loan paid to Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Ltd-net

Income Tax Paid
Met cash provided by/{used in) Operating Activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Actiuisition of fixed assets
Disposal of fixed assets

Capital Work-in-progress

Net cash used In Investing Activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Repayment/Receipt of Syndicated Term Loan

Short term loan received

Term Loan-BMRE

Share application money refund/receipt

Met cash provided by/{used in) Financing Activities

Total (a+bc)

Opening cash and bank balances
Closing cash and bank balances

(585,221,668)
16,412,719,625

(13,838,944,385)

(237,354,349)
348,124,235
(1,111,779.317)
(1,391,102)
ﬂamm
(2,477,544)
9,038,401
(822,966,545)
(452,753,157)
(29,246,379)

(170,767,799)
(1,655,150}
(342,310,174)
-1,551,464,001
Mll -W‘. m
257,185,917
(1,251,122,735)

1,439,357,882
- 188,235,147
ﬂﬂf‘ﬂm
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BSRM STEELS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" DECEMBER, 2010

LEGAL FORM OF ENTERPRISE

The Company was incorporated on 20th July, 2002, vide the certificate C-No. 4392 of 2002 as a private limited company
under Companies Act 1994, The company was corverted to a public limited company on 20th December 2006. The
company is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange as a publicly quoted company. Trading of the
shares of the company started in two stock exchanges from 18th January, 2009,

Mature of the business

The main purpose of the company is to manufacture M.S.products by setting up rolling and re-rolling mills. The company
has sat up its Rolling mill at 4 Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Latifpur, Sitakunda, Chittagong and commenced commercial
production from 1st April, 2008.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statemeént of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards, applicable
sections of Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchanoe Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

The consolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by the board of directors on 31st March 2011.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern hasis under the historical cost convention.

Functional and presentation cunréncy
The financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka which is the Company's functional currency. All financial
infarmation presented in BD Taka has been rounded off to the nearest Taka,

Usa of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments,estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets liabilities,income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis.

Reparting period
The financial statements of the company covers one year from 1st January to 31st December and is followed consistantly,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting poficies set out below have been applied consistently o all the years presemied in these financial
statements.

Propeny, piant and equipment

3.01.01 Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of seif constructed
finstalled assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
1o the working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantiing and remaving the items and restoring the site on
‘which they are located,

3.01.02 Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it
is probable that the future benefit embodied within the part will fiow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit and loss as incurred,

3.01.03 Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit and loss account on diminishing balance method over the estimated useful lives of fixed
assets. Full year's depreciation is charged on addition irespective of the date of acquisition and no depreciation is charged
in the year of disposal. The principal annual rates are as follows.
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304

3.06

3.07

3.09

Assels Rates (%)

Plant and Machingry 5%
Motor Vehicle 20%
Furniture and Fodures 10%
Office Equipments 10%
Factory Buildings 5%
Roads and Pavements 5%
Trademark %

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring these inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition in accordance with BAS-2.

Category Valuation

Finished Goods - Finished Goods are valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.
Raw materials - Raw Materials are valued at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower.
Store items- Based on weighted average method,

Leasad assels

Dperating Lease:

Payments macde under operating leases are recognised in Statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over
the term of the lease.

Trade and ather receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the congideration given in return, After
initial recognition, these are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any, due to uncollectibility of any amount so
recognised.

Advances, deposils and prepayments

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less deducitons, adjustments
or charges to other account heads such as property, plant and equipment, inventory or expenses.

Deposils are measured at payment value.

Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less charges to
Statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term fixed deposits with
banks.

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment:

The carrying amount of the company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. if any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognized If the camrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Receivables:

Company policy is to provide for impairment loss on debtors, if any receivables are not realized within three years from due
date.

Employes benefit schemes

A Contributory Provident Fund has been introduced and the fund has oltained recognition from Tax Authority on
25.11.2004. The Provident Fund started its operafion from 15t January,2010.

Appropriate provision has been made for Workers' Profit Participation Fund and Workers' Welfare Fund as per provisions of
law.

Eamings Per Share (EPS)

Basic Earnings:

This reprasents profit for the year attributable o ordinary shareholders. As there is no preference dividend, noncontrolling
interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considered fully attributable to the ordinary
sharsholders(refer to Note-30 to the Financial Statements).

Diluted Eamings per share:

Mo diluted eamings per share is required to be calcukated for the year as there is no scope for dilution during the year under
audit.
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112

3.13

114

315

3.16

Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will b required to sattle the obligation.

Interest income and expenses
Interest income has been recognised on cash basis.
Interest expenses incurred during the year have been charged to Staterment of comprehensive income.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are converted at the rates ruling on the dates advices are received. Monetary assets and
[iabilities are reconverted at rates ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date. All exchange differences are
charged/eredited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income by being absorbed in the respective head of income or
axpenditura.

Gontingencies
Contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Income 1ax expenses

Gurrent tax:

Provision for income tax has been made as per provisions of income tax laws.

Deferred tax:

In view of tha significant accumulated loss as on 31st December 2010, deferrad assets has not been recognised in the
accounts.

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2000 for all numeric information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it Is relevant for understanding of the current year's
financial statements.

Aevenue

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and rebates, if any. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably and there is no continuing management invalvement with the goods.
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4.00 Property, plant and equipment - at cost less Accumulated Depreciation

16,561 892

10,524,438

785,614,821

7,107,042

41,336,046 2.730,791.433

142,220,448

Batance as on 1 January 2008
Ariditians during 2009

4700082
21,261,724

21,261,724

2.162.245

18543577
16145343 784158498 12,686,684

16,145.343  TB4.158498 12,686 EB4

11,257,031

18,300
18,300
19,300

9,038,301

136,304 344

41336048 2867 096777
41336048 2867085777

142, 25,449
142,250 448
187,278,941

Ealance 2 31si December, 2008
Batance as on 07 January 2090
Additians during 2010
Disposal during 2010

2
g

8611600

2787327

15,353,352

180.848.271

8,313,000

7,426,085

1,881.337

25,521 037

129,409 390

788511 850 15474011

48,649,055 3,058,044 048

18300 X733

Balance as at 31st December, 2010

Accumulated Depreciation:

1242127

1,065,056 28,710,580 789,332

102,404,679
138.234,555
240,632,234
240,839.234

140.870.241

Balance a5 on 1 January 2008
Charged for the vear 2008
A1 315t Decamibes 2008

377787
66,482 857

2,00 960
1,244 087

3,244 087

55
g5
%55

7

1,188,735

35857

4,081,813

1,879,067

BB.482857 1,979,067

4081913

Batance as on 01 January 2010
Charged for the year 2010

371,304

2662 924

4287 820 J665T 445 1340484

602,027
103134 402

7787111

381508475

Dispossl during 2010

5,907,011

1,882

= 3,328 561

Balance s at 315t December, 2010

15,319,565
18,017,637
18,017,637
2886313

18,335
18335
17418

8,735,107
1063430  TITETSEN 10,707,817
12,063,430 TITETSE 10707617

17,753,326

BEBITTAME 12,145,450
2010
Taka

6,040,986 736,904 361

1.
44 o

As 2t 01 January 2008
As 4t 315t December 2009
As at 1 Janwary 2010

As at 315t December 2010

Carrying Amounts
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2010 2009
Taka Taka

5.00 Capital work in progress
Civil Construction

1,655,150

This represents cost incurmed for construction of stock yard at Narayangon] and labour shed at Fouzderhat

6.00 Deferred tax

In view of the accumulated loss as on 31st December 2010, net deferred tax asseis against unabsorbed assessed fax

lpeses and taxable temporary differences have not been recognised in the books of accounts.

700 Investment

BSRM Steets Limited has acquired 95% stuity interest in BSRM lron and Stesl Co. Lid. Le. 10,450,000 Ordinary Shares of
Tk. 100/ each an 10 November 2010 in exchange of 10,450,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- each in BSAM Steels Limited.
An amaunt of Tk, 1,045,000,000 being face value of shares issued against acquistion of this subsidiary has been shown
as [nvestment in subsidiary at cost as per BAS 27. B5RM Stesls Limited and BISCO have been operating under commaon

control.

8.00 Inventories
Raw Materials-Billets 2,011
Finished Goods-Own production 45,675
Finished Goods-Procured from outside )
Mechanical stores
MS Roll
Electrical stores
General stores
Fuel and Lubricants
Goods in Transit

800 Trade deblors
The directors believe that above receivables are good and fully realisable,

10.00 Due from affiliated companies
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Lid (BSRM)

11.00 Advances, deposits and prepayments
2} Advances:
Land
Staff loan
Income tax-corporate
Apainst expanses
Bank guarantes margin
L/C mangin
Against LG
VAT current account
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Taka
1,219,731,132
1.843.474,723

4,086,083
147,056,106
46813470
37 416,676
1,037,764
3,518,066

762,047,139

183,208
48,731,082
2,685,497
273,698,477
779692252
4,074,973
1,161,889,643

2010 2009
Taka Taka

12.00

b) Deposits:
Angar\/DP
T&T
City Cel
Power Development Board
RanksTell
Save the children UK
Karnaphuli Gas Distribution Co. Ltd. (KGDCL)
Kolkata office premises
Central Depository Bangtacesh Limited
Others

¢} Prepaymenis

Insurance premium
BSTI licence fee

Total (a+b+c)

21,000
15,000
3,606,700
10,000
40,000
9,179,192
37,750

220,000
14,067,365
1,727,544
750,000
2,477,584

1178434542

The directors consider that all the above advances, deposits and prepayments are either adjustible or recoverable in kind

or in cash and that no provigion against them are required at this stage.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand

Cash at Banks (Note-12.01)
Fixed Deposit (Note-12.03)

Cash at Banks:
Agrani Bank Ltd.
Laldighi East Br.-CD At
Laldighi East Br.-Escrow A'c
Colonel Hat Br. Ctg.-CD Afe
Tomsan Bridge Br. Comilta -CD A/C
AB Bank Ltd., Agrabad Br.Ctg.- CD Alc
Al - Arafa Islami Bank Ltd.
Bank Asia Ltd., GEPZ Br. CD Alc
Bank Asia Ltd. Agrabad Br, Cig. CD Alc
BRAC Bank Ltd., Agrabad Br.Cty.-CD Afc
Basic Bank Lid.
Commercial Bank of Caylon, Agrabad Br, Ctyg.- CD Alc
Dhaka Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Br.Ctg.-CD Afe
Dutch Bangla Bank Limited, Agrabad Branch,Cig
Duich Bangla Bank Limited, Jubilee Road Branch,Gig
Hahib Bank Ltd., L aldighi East Br.-CD Al
HSBC- Current Account, Agrabad Branch
HSBC, Ekdalia Road Br. Kolkata, India-CD Ale
HSBE,-USD Exporters FCY A/C
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IFIC Bank Ltd., Agrabad Br, Cig.-CD Alc
Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited, Jubliee Road Branch Cig
Jumana Bank Limited, Knatungonj Branch, Ctg.
Mercantile Bank Ltd., Jubilee Road Br. Cig.-CD Alc
National Bank Ltd ,Jubilee Road Br-CD Ade

National Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd., Agrabad Br. Ctg.CD Alc 8,100,913
National Bank of Pakistan, Agrabad Branch,Cty. -
One Bank Limited., Agrabad Branch,Clg 9,728
Prime Bank Limited,0.R Nizam Road Branch,Ctg 3,329,269
Shajalal Islami Bank Limited, Jubilee Road Branch, Ctg 6,751,312
Social Isiami Bank Lid, 3,289
Sonali Bank Ltd., Kalibari Br. Ctg.-CD Aflc 15,466,051
Sonali Bank Ltd.,Cable Shilpa Branch, Khuina 1,406,874
Southeast Bank Ltd, Pahartali Branch, Chittagong 1,514,940
Standard Chartered Bank, Agrabad Branch, Ctg., CD Account 644,033
Standard Chartered Bank, Dhaka 1,414,261
State Bank of India,Agrabad Branch, Chittagong 12,106,356
The City Bank Lid,, Agrabad Br. Ctg.-CD Alc 29,231
The City Bank Lid,, Dhaka. CD A/C 453,405
The Trust Bank Ltd,CDA Avenue Branch, Chittagong. 10,630
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Br.Ctg. 19,398,914
Uttara Bank Ltd. Agrabad Br.Cig.-CD Alc 815,921
137,627.426
HSBC-Agrabad Branch STD A/C(Note: 12.02) 11,476,559
HSBC-EURD Account, Agrabad Branch (Note: 12.02) 29,404
HSBC-GBP Current Account, Agrabad Branch (Note: 12.02) 759
HSBC-USD Current Account, Agrabad Branch, (Note:12.02) 321,559
11,828,371
148,455,797

1202 These accounts were opened for depositing Share monies (IP0). Balances in these accounts represent amount refundable
to the applicants of shares to whom shares were not allotted and interest credited to these accounts,

Taka Taka

12.03 Fixed Deposit ._ - :
Mercantiie Bank Limited o 7.50% ; 1,275,071

Pubali Bank Ltd 18,000,000

The Gity Bank Ltd. -

Trust Bank Lid. -

Dhaka Bank Ltd 18,384,750
37,658,821
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13.00

13.

13.02

14.00

14

Share capital
Authorised capital:
47,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 100 each 1,750,000,000
2,500,000 Preference Shares of Tk. 100 each 250,000,000
2,000,000,000
Issued, Subseribed and Paid-up capital:
14,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- each 1,450,000,000
10,450,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- each
fully paid-up for consideration other than cash -
2,175,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk.100/- each
fully paid-up as Banus Shares -
1,450,000,000
Classification of shares by holding:
S Bl B
Nos Nos
Less than 500 13,320 41,3 531
From 500 to 5,000 1,369 : 592
From 5,001 to 10,000 75 204
From 10,001 to 20,000 44 221
From 20,001 to 30,000 10 0.89
From 30,001 to 40,000 4 117
From 40,001 to 50,000 3 0.70
From 50,001 to 100,000 7 1.84
From 100,001 to 1,000,000 7 10.46
From 100,001 to above 4 69.48
Total 14,843 100.00
Composition of Shareholders at 31st December 2010:
S
MNos Nos
Sponsor Shareholders-Local 7 ; 50.98
Sponsor Shareholders-Foreign 7 0.42
Other Sharehoiders 14,829 - 4860

Long term loan
Syndicated term loan (Note-14.01)
Term loan for BMRE(Note- 14.03)

Syndicated Term loan
Due within one year
Due after more than one year

Lender-wise details of Syndicated Term Loan are as foflows:
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200 2009
Taka Taka

Syndicated Term Loan

AB Bank Ltd. 195,539,108 120,054,143
Agrani Bank Ltd. m%f 95,275,742
Bank Al Falah Ltd. mm 79,687,301
Bank Asia Ltd. wm;.m i 120,219,510
BRAC Bank Ltd. - 79,687,391
Commercial Bank of Ceylon 79,687,391
Dhaka Bank Ltd. 39,843,732
Eastem Bank Ltd. 120,213,959
IFIC Bank Ltd. 79,687,301
Mercantile Bank Ltdl. 30,843,732
National Credit and Commerce Bank Lid. 120,213,959
Prime Bank Ltd 99,950,675
Pubali Bank Ltd. 120,213,959
SABINCO Ltd, 138,616,139
Standard Bank Ltd. 79,687,301
The City Bank Ltd. 104,231,602
The Trust Bank Ltd. 104,003,331
United Commercial Bank Ltd. 240,427,997
Uttara Bank Ltd. 160,057,774
2,021,603,209

14.02 Terms of syndicated loan:
First syndicated term loan:

Lenders:
The company has entered into a syndicated loan agreement on 30.06.2006 with Agrani Bank Limited, the lead arranger,
IDLC of Bangladesh, the co-armanger and 18 (Eighteen) other Banks and Financial Institutions.

Total loan facilities: Tk. 198.70 crores.

Interest rate:
Interest rate is determined based on the 6 months T-bill rate plus 6%.

Dishursement:
The first disbursement was made on 18.01.2007

Repayments:
Above term loan Is being re-paid by 66 monthly installments starting from August, 2008,
Instaliments due within 31 December 2010 were duly paid.

Securities:
Registerad Mortgage on project land, building on first ranking parri passu basis and hypothecation of Machinery, Furniture
& Fxtures, Equipment etc.

Purpose:

The purpose of the foan is 1o set up a fully computer-controlied, fully automatic steel re-rolling mill with a capacity of
375,000 Metric tons per year.
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Second syndicated term loan:

Lenders:

The company has entered into a second syndicated loan agreement on 26.11.2007 with Agrani Bank Ltd., the lead
arranger, [OLC of Bangladesh, the co-arranger and 10 (Ten) other Banks.

Total loan facilities: Tk, 50.50 crores,

Interest rate:

Interest rate is determined based on the 6 months T-bill rate plus 6%.

Disbursement:
The first dishursement was made on 06.03.2008.

Repayments:
Abhove term loan is baing re-paid by 66 monthly installments starting from August , 2008.
Instaliments due within 31 December 2010 were duly paid.

Securities:
Registered Morigage on project land including newly acquired 35.55 katha | building on first ranking parri passu basis and
hypothecation of Machinery, fumiture & Fixtures, equipment etz.

2010
Taka I'lirl

14.03

Term loan for BMRE

Due within ane year ,ﬁﬁ“@{. .. -
Due after more than one year 53 ﬂ | ;
Terms of BMRE loan:

Lenders:

Agrani Bank Ltd. has sanctioned an amount of Tk 32 crore a5 term loan against BMRE and disbursed Tk. 56,224,000 upto
31.12.2010.

Total loan facilities: Tk. 32 crores.
Interest rate;
Interest rate is 12% per annum and will be calculated on quarterly basis.

Disbursement:
The first disbursement was made on 26.09.2010.

Repaymenis
Above term loan will be re-paid by 48 monthly instaliments starting from October, 2011.

Securities:
Registered Mortgage on project land, building on first ranking parri passu basis and hypothecation of Machinery, Furniture
& Fixtures, Equipment etc.

Purpose:

For purpose of acquisition of plant and machineries to enhance the production from 375,000 Metric Tons per year fo
500,000 Metric Tons per year.

R R
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15.00

16.00

16.02

Trade creditors
This represents amount payable to the Subsidiary -
B5SRM Iron and Steel Co. Ltd. For supply of raw materials.

Short term liabilities
Loan against Trust Receipt (LTR) [Note-16.01]
Time loan (Note-16.02)

Loan receipts against Demand Loan (Note-16.03)
Dhaka Bank Ltd.(0/0)

Uttara Bank Lid.(G/C)

National Credit and Commerce Bank Lid., C/C
United Leasing Co Lit-Factoring Loan

Pubali Bank Ltd., O/D

Eastern Bank Ltd 0/D

Brac Bank Ltd., 0/D

IFDBC (Note-16.04)

Standard Chertered Bank- Revolving Loan A/C
Shajalal Islami Bank Ltd., (Bai-Muazzal)

Loan against Trust Receipt (LTR)
AB Bank Lirmited
Al-Arafa Islami Bank Ld

Bank Asia Ltd

Brac Bank Ltd

Dhaka Bank Ltd.

Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd-JBL Br
Eastern Bank Ltd.

IFC Bank Ltd

Islami Bank Bangladesh Limited
Marcantile Bank Ltd

National Credit and Commerce Bank Lid
Mational Bank Lid.

One Bank Ltd

Pubali Bank Lid
Shajatal Islami Bank Limited
Trust Bank Limited

United Commercial Bank L td.
Uttara Bank Ltd

Social lslami Bank Ltd
State Bank of India

City Bank Ltd
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Details of Time Loan

AB Bank Ltd

Brac Bank Ltd.
Commercial Bank of Caylon
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198,215,696
219,513,601
305,518,478
160,231,350

23,706,807
149,713,761

189,843,982

231, snan

16.03

16.04

17.00

Details of Demand Loan
Eastern Bank Lid.

Bank Asia Lid

IFIC Bank Ltd

Details of inland forelgn documentary bills for collection (IFDBC)

AB Bank Limited

Bank Asia Lid
Dhaka Bank Limited

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited
Eastern Bank Lid.

IFIC Bank Ltd
Islami Bank Limited

Mercantile Bank Limited
National Credit and Commerce Bank Ltd
Ona Bank Limited
Pubali Bank Limited

Shajalal lslami Bank Limited
Standard Charterd Bank Limited
The City Bank Limited
State Bank of India
National Bank Limited

Brac Bank Limited
Commercial Bank of Ceylon
Agrani Bank Limited

Basic Bank Ltd.
Trust Bank Limitad

United Commercial Bank Limited

Liabilities for expanses

Audit Fees

Kamaphuli Gas Distribution Co. Lid.
BOC Bangladesh
Brokerage and commission

C & F Bill Payable
Advertisement bills

Godown rent

Guest House rent

Imprest Cash Settlement
Insurance Payable

Liability against supply of goods
Carriage on purchase

Others

Carriage on sales
Overtime allowances

‘ﬂ,mm
nu;sue.m

7474733
73516
1,600,000
212,256
15,117,342
14,000
309,220
10,557 151
10,282,184
12,912,065
72,509
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18.00

19.00

20.00

21.00

22.00

Salary & Allowances

Sonia Paribahan

Telephone expenses

ULE Bill Collection

L/G Liability

Sayera and Nizam Enterprise
Office rent, Dhaka

Ruby Investment Co.

Advance against sales

These represent the advances received against sales of finished
goods from different parties fo whom goods were not deliversd
within the balance sheet data.

Long term loan-current portion

This represent current portion of long term loans from financial
institutions which are repayable within next twelve months from
January 2011 and consist of as follows:

Syndicated Term Loan

Term Loan for BMRE

Liability against share spplication money
The above amounts is refundable to the applicants of shares against
which no share was allotted.

Provislon for income tax
Opening balance as on 01 January
Provided during the year:
Against current year

Against previous years

Adjusted with advance income tax paid at source
Closing balance as on 31 December

Other liahilities

Income Tax deducted at source from salary
Security Deposit

Income Tax deducted at source-others

VAT deducted at source

Earnest/Retention Maney

Finished Goods Handling Charge

Income Tax and VAT deducted at source above have subsequently been

paid to the Govt. Exchequer.
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6,448,702
1, 1%.!14
9,354,290

22,145,074

2300 Revenue

Xireme-500W
D-Bar Grade-60
D-Bar GR300
D-Bar GR 400
D-Bar Grade-40
D-Bar Grade-75
Miss Rolls
Sales of Shatt
Mefting Scrap

24,00 COST OF SALES
Cost of sales-own production (Note:24.01)
Cost of sales- finished goods procured and sold (Mote:24.02)

2401 Cost of sales-own production
Opening Stock of Raw Materials
Add: Purchase during the year

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials
Raw Materials Consumed

Add: Manutacturing Expenses:
Salary and wages

Overtime

Casual wapes

Factory overhead (Note-24.04)
Packaging cost

Fower

Gas

Management Fees

Fuel and Lubricants
Mechanical store consumption
M3 Roll Consumption
Electrical Store consumption
General store consumed
Godown rent
Depreciation (Note- 4.00)

Cost of Goods Manufactured
Add: Opening stock of Finished Goods

Less: Closing stock of Finished Goods
Cost of sales

2010 2009
Taka Taka

m.msm
mmm
ﬁ.mm.-
218,891,501
29,995
7,860,494

15,843,586,337

13,815,868,389
445,083,632
ﬂ.ﬂ'i m

13,661,108,854
14,005,161,134
1,219,731,132
12,785,430,002

65,040,112
1,404,273
8,728,126

1’3@.391 54?
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24.02 Cost of sabes-finished goods procured and sold

Opening stock of finished goods as on 1 January
Finished goods purchased from outside

Less: Closing stock of finished goods as on 31 December

24.03 Quantitative movement of inventories
Faw matesials

Opening stock as on 1 Janaury
Add: Purchased during the year
Add: Purchased from Sister concem

Less: Consumed /Sold during the year
Closing stock s on 315t December

Finished goods

Opening stock as on 1 January
Add:Produced during the year

Add: Purchased from Sister Concemn
Add: Stock adjustment

Less: Sold during the year
Sale of finished goods procured from outside

Closing stock as on 315t December

#4.04 Factory overhead

Billat cutting charge

Bonus

Carrying charges-raw materials
Computer expansas

Carrying charges-finished goods
Conveyance expenses

E-mail expenses
Entartainment
Factory office expenses
General expenses

Generator expensas
Guest house expenses
Insurance expansas

Medical axpenses
Paper and periodical
Postage and telegram

Printing

Stationary
Repairs and Maintenance
Uniform expanses

e . BSAM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010

2010
Taka Tall:a

25.00 Selling and distribution costs
Advertisement
Brokerage and commission
Carriage on sales
Discount aliowed
Export charges
Blectricity expenses-Depot
Debtors written off
Loss in transit

Sales promotion expenses
Godown rent

26.00 Administrative costs
Directors' remuneration (Note-26.01)
Salaries and allowances
Overtime allowance
Fees and ranawals
Audit fees
Bonus
Carrying charge
Consulting fee
Conveyance expenses
Donation and subscriptions
Entertainment
E-mail expenses
General expenses
Guest house expenses
Legal expenses
Land Revenus
Repairs and maintenance
Office expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Otfice rent
Postage expenses
Printing
Stationery
Paper and Periodicals
Telephone expenses
Training expenses
Traveling expenses
Depreciation (Note-4.00)
Electricity Expenses
Medical Expenses

H.M,ﬂ*"
4,116,105
367,860
183,112

9, 1&9@ :
7,544
7,641,060
11,084,700
132,417,279

E&,ﬂdﬂﬁ:

ﬂ 750
183,002
1,274,254

e
366,324
'1M.11!
22851
1,264,375
347682
6,760,665
6,208,517
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26.01 Directors' Remuneration
Details of Directors' remuneration pﬁdmmmywmalﬂm

Mr. Alihussain Akberali-Chairman 9,600,000
Mr. Aameir Alihussain-Managing Director 10,800,000
Mr. Zohair Taherali-Director 6,000,000
Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali-Director 3,600,000
Mrs. Sabeen Aameir- Director 600,000

30,600,000

In addition to remuneration, Directors avail company
vehicles for transportation purposes.

27.00 Other Income
Miscellaneous income
Loss on sale of fixed assets

28.00 Finance cosis
Interest on Cash credit
Interest on LTR
Interest on Demand and Time loan
Interest on Syndicated Term loan
Interest on BMRE Term loan
Arrangers' Commision
Bill collection charge
Bank charges
Bank Guarantee Commission
Interest from Sister Concemn
Interest on 5TD and Others
Interest on Overdraft
Interest on export koan

2900 Finance income
Interest on IPO deposit
Interest income from FOR
Interest on STD

30.00 Baslc earnings per share (EPS)
Profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders
Weighted Average number of shares outstanding during the year
Basic earnings per share (EPS)

; . BSAM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010

4,959,274
462,536,392
29,145.2!6
299,551 193

S.znﬁ.m
5,710,595
6,576,178

553.51'!

(53,253,426)

730,978

7,431,968
400,449

769,713,113

)

31.00

32.00

Ralated party transactions

Relatianship fuire of Outstanding
Irausacﬂom on 31.12.20010

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd.

BSRM Wires Lid
BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Lid.
Meghna Engingering Works Lid

Karnafully Engineering Works Ltd
Chittagong Power Company Lid,

Market price

Contingent liabilities

Tha following contingent liabilities existed on the batance sheet date:

L/C liability

Agrani Bank Ltd.

Dhaka Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Branch
Bank Asia Ltd., Agrabad Branch
Mercantile Bank Ltd., Jubilee Road Branch.
IFIC Bank Ltd

Commercial Bank of Ceylon

AB Bank Ltd

NCC Bank Ltd

Prime Bank Lid

State Bank of India

The City Bank Ltd

Uttara Bank Ltd

Eastern Bank Ltd., Agrabad Brangh
Pubali Bank Ltd. Agrabad Branch
Shahjalal Istami Bank Limited, Jubilee Road Branch
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Jubilee Road Branch
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd

Al Arafah lslami Bank Ltd

BASIC Bank Ld

DBBL, Jubilee Road Branch

National Bank Ltd

Standerd Chartered Bank

Social lslami Bank Lid

Trust Bank Lid

BRAG Bank Ltd,

One Bank Ltd

Jamuna Bank Ltd

14,137,000
323,024,428
377,037,000
312,694,085
2,570,544
313,030,979
413,778,000
1,721,250
91,080,000
274,240,777
-
163,200,000
222,052,000
19,989,000
240,474,320
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3202 Bank guarantes

IFiC Bank Ltd 13,690,995
Bank Guarantee Against Bakhrabad Gas System 10,912,500
Trust Bank Lid. -

S

33.00 Capital commitment
The company had no capital commitment at the balance sheet date.

.00 Production capacity I
Installed Capacity (in M.Ton) yearly 375,000
Production {In M.Ton) 350,326
Capacity utilised (%) 83

3500 Employees
Number of employees whose salary was below Tk. 3,000 -
Number of employees whose salary was above Tk, 3,000 302

302

36.00 Subseqguenlevents
The Board of Directors in their maeting held on 313t March, 2011
recommended 20 % stock dividend for the year 2010,

PHOTO
GALLERY
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St EGM In Progress. Proud Supplier of M5 Rod in 3rd

Kamaphully Bricge
The Chairman addressing In 8" AGM Road Dividers for smooth Traffic Flow
Bth AGM Audlence Blanket distribution for the Poor
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Report of the Board of Directors’ of
BSRM Iron and Steel Co. Ltd.

Dear fellow Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to welcome you at the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year 2010 on
behalf of the Board of Directors.

By the grace of almighty Allah we have started commercial production on 1st June, 2010. Every M.5.
product producing steel re-rolling mills should have secured source of raw materials (M.S. Billet). For
this reason, BSRM Group had taken initiative in 2008 to establish a world class quality and largest billet
making plant in Bangladesh. With the commissioning of this ptant, BSRM's competitive position has
further strengthened, as a significant portion of billets will be supplied by BSRM Steel & Iron Co. Lid.

Operational performance:

During the year 2010 the company has produced 78,243.038 M. Ton billets and at the same time the
Company sold 76,489.710 M. Ton billets.

Financial Performance:

The company has eamed Tk, 108,928,802 in 2010, The sales volume was Tk, 3,263,482 916, Some
key financial indicators are appended below for your information:

Paurs | 10607 |2009(800 | 008 80T

Gross Profit

Met Profit

Earning Per Shares
Gross Profit Ratio

Net Profit Ratio

Net Asset Value (NAV)

Significant share transfer;

To strengthen the competitive position of BSRM Steels Limited and to minimize dependency for raw
materials, the management of BSRMS decided to take over ownership of BISCO through acquisition
of 95% of its entire shareholding and accordingly 95% ordinary shares of the company have been
transferred in favor of BSRM Steels Limited on 10th November 2010 after obtaining approval from the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Now, BSRM lron and Steel Co Ltd, is a subsidiary company of
BSRM Steels Limited.

Conversion into Public Limited Company:

On 24th February 2011 the share holders of the company have approved to convert the company in
to Public Limited Company along with splitting of its face value of shares from Tk, 100/- to Tk. 10/-
and accordingly all legal steps have been taken.
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Election of the Board of Directors:

In accordance with the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company Mr. Zohair Taherali and Mr. Alihussain
Akberali, the two Directors of the Company, representing one third of the number of existing directors retire by rotation
in the Annual General Meeting and being eligible Mr. Alihussain Akberali offer himself for re election. Mr. Zohair
Taherali be appointed as nominated director of BSRM Steels Limited.

Appointment of Auditors:

The retiring auditor Basu Banerjee Nath & Co, Chartered Accountants, Taher Chamber, 10 Agrabad C/A, Chittagong
express their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2011, As the retiring auditor is eligible for re appointment the
Board of Directors recommended the re-appointment of the retiring auditors to hold the office of the auditor for the
year 2011.

In the end on behalf of the Board of Directors | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our honored shareholders,
staffs, different government bodies and bankers for their guidance, co- operation and support they extended to us. |
wotld like to note with appreciation the dedication of our workforces showed to make this year a successful one for
the Company.

Allah Hafiz.

Alihussain Akberali FCA
Chairman

s (B) esaM Stovis Limited | Annual Report 2010
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Ref. Mo. BBNG/ 561 /2010-2011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BSRM IRON& STEEL CO. LTD.

Chittagong, March 09, 2011

Report on the Financial Statemenis:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BSAM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD. namely, Balance sheet as at December
31, 2010 and the related Income statement for the year ended December 31, 2010. Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity,
Cash flow statement, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), and for such internal control a management determings is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditor's Responsibllity:

Our responsibility is to express an expert opinion on these financial statements baged on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Bangladesh Standands on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materal
misstatement.

Scope:

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controd relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the Fnancial Statements in order to design audit proceduras that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the affectiveness of the entity's intermal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management as well 23 evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial Statements.

We believe that the awdit evidence we have obizined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion;

In our opinion, the financial statements of the company prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Repaorting Standards
(BFRS), including Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
December 31, 2010 and the results of its financial performance, its cash fiow statement and Statement of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements:

Im our opinion, the Financial Statements comgply with the applicable sections of the Companies Act.1994, and other applicable faws
and regulations.

a) Our examination and checking of records, relevant books of accounts, registers, schedules and financial statements were
sufficient to enable us to form an informed and assessed opinion on the authenticity and accuracy of the financial statements

b}  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

¢) In our opinion, proper books of account 28 required by kaw have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our
examination of those books;

d) The company's Balance Sheet, incoma statement dealt with by this report are in agreement from our examination of thoss

books;
(Basu Banerjee Nath & Co.)
Chartered Accountants
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Financial Statements of
BISCO



BSRM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD. BSRM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD.
BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010. INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2010.
3.12.2010 31.12.2008 0a.11.2010 31.12.2010
01 SOURCES OF FUNDS: Taka
Sharehoiders' funds: Turnover (net of VAT) 2,526,535,554 3,263,482,916
Share Capital 02 453,400,000 Less: Cost of goods sold 2,286,574 445 2,968,340,969
Accumulated Profit/Loss) for current year = Gross Profit 239,961,109 205,141,947
Share Money Deposit 43,289 509
496,689,509 Less: Administrative and Other Expenses 18 8,086,650 9,747,767
Loan Funds: - Trading Profit 231,874,458 285,394,181
Long Term Loan (Syndicated Loan) 03 1,032,948,173 Add: Other Income 17 4,410,000 5,864,797
TOTAL TAKA: 1,529,637,682 236,284 458 291,258,978
02  APPLICATION OF FUNDS: Less: Financial Expenses 18 140,908,668 172,033,825
Fixed Assets-At Cost 04 381,670,932 Net Profit before tax and WPPF 85375791 119,225,153
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 5 Less: Contribution to workers' Profit
381,670,932 Participation Fund (WPPF) & Workers Welfare Fund 4,768,790 5,961,258
Un-allocated Revenue Expenditure 05 180,074,721 Net Profit Before Tax 90,607,001 113,263,895
CURRENT ASSETS: Less: Provision for Income Tax = 3,335,003
Inventories 08 ? Net Profit after Tax 90,607,001 109,928,802
Trade Debtors o7 - Profit Attributable to Shareholders 20,607,001 109,928,802
Due from affiliaied companies 08 E Transferred o Retained Earnings 90,607,001 109,928,802
Advances, deposits and pre-payments 09 1,063,542,370 Earnings Per Shares (EPS) 19 824 9.99
Cash and Bank balances 10 829,549
1.064,371,920
Less: Current Liabilities:
Short Term loan 1 el MANAGING DIRECTOR R COMPANY SECRETARY
Liabilities for expenses 12 8,271,807 Signed in terms of our annexed report of even date.
Current portion of Syndicated Term Loan 03 - mm .
Due to affiliated companies 13 71,535,777 Taher Chamber (Ground Floor) (BASU EE NATH & CO.)
Provision for Income Tax 10, Agrabad Commercial Area CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Provision for WPPF - Chittagong-4100
96,516,875
Net Current Assets 967,855,045
Preliminary expenses 36,985
TOTAL TAKA: 1,529,637 682
MANAGING DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
Signed in terms of our annexed report of even date, f
Taher Chamber (Ground Floor) {BASU BANERJEE NATH & CO.)
10, Agrabad Commercial Area CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Chittagong-4100
Date - Chittagong, March 08 , 2011,
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BSRM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Fur the year ended December 31, 2010

Capital Bnpmlt Eaming:

Balance as on December 31, 2009
Ordinary Shares issuad during the year

Net Profit/{Loss) After Tax for the year
Balance as on December 31, 2010

Ny )/

MANAGING DIRECTOR COMPANY SECRETARY
Signed in terms of our annexed report of even date. Z

Taher Ghamber (Ground Floor) {BASU BANER.JEE NATH & CO.)

10, Agrabad Commercial Area CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Chittagong-4100
Date - Chittagong, March 09 , 2011,
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BSRM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
For the }fear ended December 31, 2010

DEC 31, 2010 Total
TAKA TAKA

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash collection from customers

Cash payment for cost and expenses
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVATES;

Acquisition of fixed assets _

Net cash used in Investing activities (1,508,473,441)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Share Application Money Recelved

Affiliated Company's Transaction

Incraase of Short Term Loan

Incraase of Syndication Term Loan -

Net cash used in Financing Activities 2,286,21,250

Net Cash Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 7,715,424

Cash and Cash Equivalent at Beginning of the Year 829,549

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR I.‘.ﬂl.ﬂ!‘l
MANAGING DIRECTOR m% COMPANY SECRETARY

Signed in terms of our annexed report of even date. | z

Taher Chamber (Ground Floor) (BASLI BANER.IEE NATH & CO,)
10, Agrabad Commerclal Area CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Chittagong-4100

Date - Chittagona, March 08 , 2011,
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BSRM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010.

0.

01.01.

01.02

.03

.04

01.05

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND OTHER INFORMATIONS:

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND BASIS:
These accounts have been prepared on accrual basés under historical cost convention, These statements have been
prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and were relevant with profiessional requirements of the law.

DATE OF INCORPORATION AND REGISTERED OFFIGE ETC.:

BSRM IRON 8 STEEL CO. LIMITED, a private company limited by shares was incorporated under the Companies Act (Act
XV} of 1994 on April 13, 2005 vide registration No. CH-5415 of 2005 from Assistant Reqgisirar of Joint Stock Companies
and Firms, Chittagong. The registered Office of the Company is situated at All Mansion, Sadarghat Road, Chittagong.

BOARD OF DIREGTORS:
The company has been managed by a Board of Directors and the names are given below:-

1) Mr Alihussain Akberall FCA Chairman & Managing Diractor
2)  Mr. Ameir Alihussain Directar
3)  Mr. Zohair Taherali Director
4)  Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali Director

MATURE OF BUSINESS:
The company established an automatic steel metting plant for making different quality of M.S. Billets and to sell the same
steel rolling milks . It has gone to frial production on 22.03.2010 & started commercial production from 01.06.2010.

FIXED ASSETS: TK. 20,68,219,094
The above balance represents cost of fixed assets. During the year a sum of Tk. 1,686,548,162 has been added to fixed
assets.. Details of fived assets are given under MNote No. 04. Depreciation on Fixed Assets have been calculated at
Diminishing Batance Method.

SHARE GAPITAL:
S| 31220 |

10,000,000 Ordinary sharas of Tk.100.00 sach
20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk.100.00 each
30,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk.100.00 each

1,000,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Pald-up capital:
11,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk.100.00 each fully paid up in cash, details of which are given below:

A

R RN

As per MA & AA 13-04-2005 5.IHIJ

As par return allotment 04-06-2005 463,500 45.350.0110
As per return allotment 20-07-2009 2,065,500 206,550,000
As per return allotment 14-12-2009 2.000,000 200,000,000
As per retum allotment 01-06-2010 6,466,000 | -
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BSRM IRON & STEEL CO. LTD.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010.

=

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA

11,712,500

Mr. Aameir Alihussain 5925 11,712,500
Mr. Zohair Taherali 24,709 11,712,500
Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherall 2,550 11,712,500
Mrs. Bilkis Alihussain 4 49

H. Akberali & Co. Lid 364,905

VORTEX Investments L1d. 1595

BSAM Steels Limited 10,450,000

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd.

Meghna Engineering Works L1d.

11,000,000 1,100,
LONG TERM LOAN:

Due within one year

Due after more than one year

TOTAL TAKA:

Fol -

BSRS (Bangladesh Development Bank Lid.) 10,521,924

Bank Asia Lid. . 7.582 641

City Bank Ltd, 15,939,775

Eastern Bank Limited 15,956,439

Industiral & Infrastructural Develpement 12,124,544

Finance Co (IDFC )

Janata Bank Ltd. 23,820,269 107,848,536

Mutual Trest Bank Limited 15,887,516 72,786,669

One Bank Ltd. 14,279,904 72,838,761

Rupali Bank Ltd. 15,801,865 71,767,726

Sonali Bank Ltd. 30,518,828 141,195,236

Standard Bank 23,047 922 109,565,355

Trust Bank Ltd. 7,982,641 36,522,084

United Commercial Bank Ltd. 23,831,274 108,860,774

Dhaka Bank Lid. 40, 766,7 7899320 27177
i "L : 226404960 | 1 | 1032948173

Note: Syndicated Loan

Lenders: The company has entered into a syndicated loan agreement on 01-06-2010 with IDFC the lead arranger and
13 (thirteen) other Banks.

Total Loan Facilities: Taka 136.20 crores,

Interest Rate: initially interest rate was 13.00% but subsequentiy the rate has been reduced to 11.50% with effect from
01-06-2010.

Dishursement: The first disbursement was made on February 2010,

Repayments: The facility will be repayabie by 18 (eighteen) quarterly instaliments commencing from end of 215t months
and ending of the end of month 72 from the date of first draw down under the facility,

Securities: Registered morigage on project land, bailding on first ranking pami passu basis and hypothecation of
machinery, furniture & flxtures, equipments etc.

Purpose: The purpose of the loan is to set up a fully computer- controlled, fully automatic billet making plant.

BESRM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010 .
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0a.m

CONSUMABLE STORE STOCK:

Mechanical Store
Electrical Store
General Store

Fuel & Lubricants Store
Consumable Store

TRADE DEBTORS:
BSRM Steets Lid.
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited

DUE FROM AFFILIATED COMPANY:
Meghna Engineering Works Lid,
H.Akbar Ali & Co.Ltd.

BSAM Logistics Ltd.

Bangladesh Steel Re Rolling Mills Ltd,

ADVANCE, DEPOSITS & PREPAYMENTS:
For Expenses (Annaxure-B)
Security Deposit (N.Mo. 09.01)
Advance against LG

Staff Loan

LC Margin

Guarantee Margin

Advance Income Tax

FOR

VAT Current Account

Advance For Scrap

SECURITY DEPOSITS:

Power Development Board Clg(PDB)
T &T Dept.Chittagong

Mr. Nuruddin

Mr. Humayun Kabir

Kolkata Office,Howrah(IRS 25,000)
Shafi-ul-Alam(Guest House # 02)
Bakhrabad Gas Systems Ltd.
Mohammad Ali Akber

Brothers Prokaushali Workshop
BOC Bangiadesh Ltd.

Power Development Board,[Fozderhat)
Mohammadia Trading

TOTAL TAKA:
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AMOUNT IN TAKA
| 322010 | 31.12.2009

395,541,664
628,842,304
26,110
12,033,561
904,182
5,659,312
28,900

2,000

7,000
57,750
34,000

1,347,588

10.

o

10.02

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Cash in Hand (Note no. 10.01)
Cash at Bank (Note no. (10.02)

TOTAL TAKA:

CASH IN HAND

Head Office

Factory Office
Imprest Cash
TOTAL TAKA:

CASH AT BANK

Agrani Bank Ltd,

(C.0. AVC NOLO 24533027245, Laldighi corparate Br.. Cg.)
City Bank Ltd.

(C.0. AVC NO. 11071-1130-4001. Agrabad Br., Cig.)
Trust Bank Lid.

(C.0. AC ND. 2670. 0.RNizam Road, Cig)
United Commercial Bank Lid. (UGBL)
(Escrow A/C NO. 5948-9, Juhilee Road Br. Ctg)
Islami Bank Bd. Ltd.

(C.0. AYG ND. 230609, Jubiles Road Br. Ctg.)
Sonali Bank Lid.

(C.0. AYC NO. 29988, Dhaka)

HSBC

(C.D. AVC NO. 178166-011. Cig)
Mutual Trust Bank Lid.

(C.0. AC NO. 12-020007784. Cig)

United Commercial Bank Ltd. (UGBL)

(AT MO, 0023-1110005874-8. Jubiles Road Br. Cig)
Eastern Bank Ltd

(C.0. AC NO. 17842, Agrahad Br., Ctg.)

One Bank Ltd,

(C.D. AC NO. 64219-308. Agrabad Br, Cig.)
Dhaka Bank Ltd.

(C.0. AC N0, 7552, Jubiles Road Br. Cig)

Habib Bank Ltd

(C.0. A/C NO. 2623-070000-588 Laldighi Br. Cig.)
Janata Bank Ltd.

(C.0. AC NO. 000-233-01 9865, Laldighi Br. Cig.)
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Lid.

(C.0. A/C ND. 005705-000-1531, Agrabad Br. Ctg.)
Standard Bank Ltd.

(C.0. A/C ND.00733-1000-28 Agrabad Br, Ctg..)
Shahjalal Istami Bank Ltd.

(C.0. AC NO. 3003-111-0000-1622 Jubilee Road Br.Ctg.)
Prime Bank Ltd

(C.0.A/c No.13411040011522 C.0 A Avenue Br.Ctg)
Mercantile Bank Lid.

(C.0.Ae No.T008 Jubiles Road Br.Chg)

Social Islami Bank Ltd.

(CO Ade Ko 1330000014 Jublles Road Br.Cig)
Dutch Bangla Bank Lid.

(CO A Mo 1421107305 Jubiles Road Br.Cig)
City Bank Ltd.(CC hypo)

(&C NO. 6331113040001 .Agrabad Br. C3g)
State Bank of India

(CO Mg Wo 052202527 20001 Agrabad Br.Ctg.)
IFIC Bank LTD.

(CO Afc 2030357813001 Agrabad Br. Cig.)

TOTAL TAKA:

AMOUNT IN TAKA

587,374
210,114
{1,700,664)




1. SHORT TERM LOAN: [ 3322000 ] 31922000 | 15. COST OF GOODS SOLD:
Short Term Loan 2 Opening Stock of Raw Materials
Bank Loan -CC & 00 (Mote.No.11.01) - Add: Purchase during the year
TOTAL TAKA: : 004 g Local Scrap
—al Import-Shredded Scrap
1101  LIABILITIES TO BANK (CC): ;:wmwk;iﬂ“m iy
MU T Eank L, 500 : Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials
e : Add: Cost of Production (Note No-15.01)
One Bank Ld. = Cost of Goods availabie for sale
AB Bank Ltd. - Add: Opening Stock of Finished Goods
Eastern Bank Ltd. :
[ZARA loan Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods
TOTAL TAKA: = TOTAL TAKA:
12 LIABILITIES FOR EXPENSES: me m‘" Pm"""“{:';mm_q
Liabilities for exp. (Note. No 12.01) 1,009,926 i WE""““’ i
Othat GrovRore (Amneirp-) 471,581 Factory Overhed (Annexure-E)
TOTAL TAKA: 8,271,807 Power Consumed
Welding Gas Consumed
1201  FOR EXPENSES Fuel & Lubricants Consumed
Guest House RentiNuruddin) 21,340 Store Consumed (Annexure-F)
Guest House Rent{Mohd Ali) 100,000 Depreciation (Note.No-4)
Generator Rent(G/ House site) 30,400 TOTAL TAKA:
Guest House(Saiful Alam) 17,000 .
ol . : 16. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:
Godown Rent (BSRM) = Travelling Expenses
Wasa = (ffice Expenses
Godown Rent (BD.Steel Ltd ) - Conveyance Expenses
Basu Banerjee Nath & Co. 15,300 Stationery
TOTAL TAKA: 1,000,926 Postage & Telegram
- Talephone Expenses
13. DUE TO AFFILIATED COMPANY: Audit Fee
East Bangla Trading and Industrial Carp. Lid. - Entertalnment Beyenses
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rollng Mils Limited 71,538,777 T i
TOTAL TAKA: 71,538,777 Fees & Renewals
Office Rent
14. OTHER LIABILITIES: Misc, Expenises
Security Receipts 3§00 My Gar Experaca
Retention Money 7,658,350 Motor Cycle Expenses
Staff Income Tax 307,705 Motor Car Repair
VAT Deduction at Source 1,305,285 Computer Expenses
Liabilities for L/C (Deferred) 4,160,000 LR oo
TOTAL TAKA: 16,700,201 mﬁ.’ Fees
NOTE: VAT & TAX deduction at source have been deposited to Gov, Exchequer subsequently. it
Muohile Allowance
Pﬁﬁiﬂﬂ EIP'HINS
Subscription
Brokerage & commission
TOTAL TAKA:
som . BSRM Stsels Limitsd | Annual Report 2010 BSRM Steels Limited | Annual Report 2010 . bt ko
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OTHER INCOME:

Truck/Trailor Rent received
Interest Realisation

FINANCIAL EXPENSES:

Interest on One bank Term Loan
Interest on Eastern bank Term Loan
[nterest on City Bank Term Loan
Interest on Dhaka Bank Term Loan
Interest on IDFC Term Loan
Interest on Trust Bank Term Loan
[nterest on LCBL Term Loan
Interest on Rupali Bank Term Loan
Interest on Standard Bank Term Loan
Interest on MTBL Term Loan
[nterest on Janata Bank Term Loan
Interest on Bank Asia Term Loan
Interest on BSRS Term Loan
[nterest on Sonali Bank Term Loan
Interest on MTEL S0D Afe:
Interest on DBL LTR

Interest on City Bank CC Alc
Interest on City Bank LTR
Interest on UCBL LTR

Interest on Sonali Bank LTR
Interest on Al-Arafah LTR

Interest on Dhaka 0D Afe
Interest on Bank Al-Falah LTR
Interest on One Bank CC
Interest on OBL LTR

Interest an MTBL LTR

Interest on Shahjalal Bank LTR
Interest on MBL

Interest on EBL Lir

Interest on Islami Bank Ltr

Bank Charge

[nterest on Leasa Liabilities

Bank Guaranty Commission
Interest on Soclal kslami Bank LTR
Less:Interest on Sister Concern

TOTAL TAKA:

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):

The computation of EPS is given below:

) Profit attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders (Met Profit After Tax)

b) Weighted average Mumber of Shares Qutstanding for the year
{Note.No-19.01)

Eamning Per Share (EPS)

Calculation of welghted average number of shares:

Ordinary shares issued on 13th April 2005
Ordinary shares issued on 4th June 2005
Ordinary shares issued on 20th July 2009
Ordinary shares issued on 14th February 2009
Ordinary shares issued on 1st June 2010
TOTAL TAKA:
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109,928,802
11,000,000

463,500

2,085,500
2,000,000
6,466,000
11,000,000

i

i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i

5,000

483,500
2,085,500
2,000,000
6,466,000

11,000,000

ANNEXURE-A

Burhani Stee! Corporation
The Purbokone Ltd.

Provati Insurance Co.Lid.
Shamol Trading Cor.

United Consultant India Ltd.
General Kinematics Corporation
Ramesh Devadinga
Naseem Traders

Shipping Enterprise

Fair Star Shipping Lines
Karnaphuli Ins. Co. Ltd.
Rupali Ins. Co. Ltd.

Bizli Traders

Express Insurance Lid.

City Genaral Insurance Co.Ltd.
Reliance Insurance

Royal Trading Corporation
Island Trading Corparation
Keya Enterprise

Trim trade

Karnafully Shipping
Pioneer Trading

Feroz Enterprise

Faderal Engineers, India
Concord Ready Mix

ABC Ltd.{adv. payment)
Pragati Insurance Ltd.
Bangladesh General Insurance
Mahuya Enterprise
Phoenix Insurance
Mohammadi Enterprise
Korban Ali Dev. Corporation
Central Hardwara

Crystal Insurance Co, Ltd.
N.Islam Enterprise
Bangladesh Co-Operative Insurance
Khan Engineering

Ezzy International

Nitol Insurance Co.Ltd.
Federal Insurance Co.Ltd,
Standard Insurance Co.Ltd.
Republic Co.Ltd.
M.N.Enterprise

H.5.Traders

TOTAL TAKA:

2,835
9,268
9,361
437,215

2,917,680
5,000
102,076

200,921
8,568
18,164
1.870
10
2,544
61,076
30,150

70,463
553,578
92,723
2,056,464

9,580
138,195
3,272,384
537,658
B63,539

20,067
445,284
564,773
185,760

4,447
305,833

43,600
1,729,222
312

9,387
15,797
152,308
HT617
16,165,769
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ANNEXURE-B

ADVANGE FOR EXPENSES:

Jakir Hossain(Takurdighi)
Hujaternessa (MRS)- Takurdighi
llias (MD) - Takurdighi
Shekh Tajul Islam - Takurdighi
Shahinur Akier - Takurdighi
Main Uddin - Takurdighi
Imran Shakha

Heidelberg Cement Ltd.
Afzal Hossain

Bangladesh Erectors Lid.
Pioneer Insurance
Mohammad Yusuf

Ortabi Ltd.

Amirul Islam (Accounts)
AdnanSaifullah

Intertek BD_Ltd

Power Development Board,Cig.
Anwar Rza

SDSL Freight Ltd.
Mohammed Trading

BOC Lid.

Jamuna 0il Co.Ltd.
M.5.Trading

Meghna Petroleum Lid.
Premier LP Gas Ltd.

CPCL Store Yard

Abdul Mannan Rana
Electratherm (India) Itd.
Imtiaz Uddin Chy
Surendra Jagdale

Agrani Insurance

Bangia Trac Ltd.

Padma 0il Co. Ltd.
Siemenns (BD) Lid,
Saurava Mathure

Vezzani Spa, [taly

Takaful Insurance Ltd.
Shakawat Hossain

Sonar Bangla Insurance
Global Insurance

Al-Ha| Falz Ahmed & Sons
Vortex Investments Lid.
Alamgir Medical asst.

ANNEXURE-C

Direct Expenses
Casual Wages
Erector charges
Wages

Testing charges
Machining charge
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TOTAL TAKA:

TOTAL TAKA:

| AMOUNT IN TAKA |

31122010 |
50000
30,000
100,000
50,000
50,000
25,000
100,000
69,007
2,000
960,000
8,699
100,000
1,465,000
200,000
100,830
1,250
7,957,419
45,234
154,485
30,731
94,378
554,812
18,500
113,400
264,812
27,478,541
5,000
103,469
10,000
365,800
321
137,304
411,333
275,890
14,500
31,165,236
225
3,000
842
5143
88,000
616,950
5,000
73,242,181

6,186,521
281,21
9,877,536
30,700
66,000
18,982,028

ANNEXURE-D
Direct Materials Consumed

Lining Materials

Tundish consumable store
Consumable Store Consumed
Ferro Silicon

Ferro Manganese

Silico Manganase

Ladle Refining Furnace

ANNEXURE-E
Factory Overhead
Salaries & Allowances
Factory Office Expenses
Land Revenue
0.T.Wages
Bonus (Festival)
Bonus {Incentive)
Repairs & Maintenance
Godown Rent
Wasa
Printing Exp.
Generator Expanses
Medical allowance
Postage & Telegram
Conveyance
Entertainment.
Stationery
Special Allowance
Staff Welfare Expenses
Guest House Expensss
Guest Housa Rent
Carrying Charge
Billet Cutling Expenses
Computer Exp.
Paper & Periodical
Servicing Charge
Misc. Expenses
Driver Allowance
Imsurance ( Gthers)
Electric Expenses

ANNEXURE-F
Store Consumed
Mechanical Store Consumed
Electrical Store Consumed
General Store Consumed

GENERAL:

| AMOUNT IN TAKA |
31.12.2010

23,602,737

12,604,497

56,053,771

20,318,535

71,322,470

61,989,175

870,829

TOTAL TAKA: 246,762,014

35,849,230
66,620
59,076
2,426,158
1,697 815
271,500
1,970,887
950,350
3,748
183,931
121,000
258,604
15,047
1,874,178
921,803
246,143
50,062
260,786
3,472 461
1,287 453

15,370,858

103,085

3,764

13,000

8,494

6,000

8,563

20,138

TOTAL TAKA: 67,557,589

8,482 318
6,396,787
3,124,079
TOTAL TAKA: 18,003,184

i} Previous year's figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary,to conform to the current year's presentation
i) Tax payable during the year calculated @ 5% as per SRO No.173 Income Tax2009 dt.30.06.2000.
il Bank amount represant book balance which has been reconciled with the Bank. Statements and confirmed by the

banker's certificates.
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BSRM Steels Limited

Registered Office: Ali Mansion, 1173/1207 Sadarghat Road, Chittagong

|/we (Name)
of {Address)
being a shareholder of BSRM Steels Limited (the “Company™) hereby appoint,

Mr./Ms, (Name)
of (Address)

as my/our proxy, to attend on my/our behalf at the 8 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 31# May
2011 and at any adjournment thereof or any poll that may be taken in consequence thereof and to vote on myfour
behalf as he/she thinks fit on all Resolutions.

As witness my/our hands this day of 2011,
Signed Folio/ BO ID NO. Signed (Proxy) Folio/BO ID NO
(Shareholder)
Signature Verified
&1
34 b Authorised Signatory
£ &" T
s , BSRM Steels Limited

Mote:  The proxy form, duly filked in and stamped, must be submitted with the Registered Office of the Company not bess than 72 hours before the
tirme fixed for the meeting.

BSRM Steels Limited
Registered Office: Ali Mansion, 1173/1207 Sadarghat Road, Chittagong

Attendance Slip

| hereby record my presence at the 9 Annual General Meeting of BSRM Steels Limited on 31% May 2011,

Name

Bow( | [ | [ [ [ [ | [ P 7 P I J | |

Signature Verified

Signature

Authorised Signatory
BSAM Steels Limited
Mote: Please complete this Attendance Slip and deposit at the registration cownter on the day of the meeting.
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